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2012 ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company™) is
pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012. This announcement, containing the full text of the
2012 annual report of the Company (“2012 Annual Report”), complies with the relevant requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results. This annual results
announcement and the 2012 Annual Report will be available for viewing on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at www.scudgroup.com.

The printed version of the 2012 Annual Report will be delivered to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders™).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

2012
Turnover 1,821,620
(Loss)/Profit from Operations (201,253)
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company  (162,815)
Total Assets 2,113,100
(LBITDA)/EBITDA (118,117)
Basic (Loss)/Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) (15.78)
Diluted (Loss)/Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) (15.78)
Current Ratio (Times) 1.8
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%) 24.9
Cash Position 422,433

Proposed Final Dividend Per Share (HKD cents) -

2011

1,653,011
77,404
59,492

1,998,181

159,432
5.76
5.76

2.4

11.0
498,965
2.0

% Change

10.2
(360.0)
(373.7)

5.8
(174.1)
(374.0)
(374.0)

(25.0)
13.9 pts
(15.3)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DRI

SCUD Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 01399) (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of rechargeable batteries and peripheral accessories for various mobile
phones, and backup power supply kits suitable for portable electronic
products of different types in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”
or “China”). Since 2010, the Group has formally begun expanding its
upstream businesses focusing on the manufacture and sale of lithium
bare battery cells for a variety of rechargeable batteries. Currently, the
principal operating businesses of the Group are in three segments,
namely, own-brand business, original equipment manufacturing (“OEM")
business and upstream bare battery cell business.

In recent years, the Group has been proactively adjusting its development
strategies to adapt to the trend of the mobile phone market. The
Group has also increased its R&D efforts to enhance the manufacturing
capability of quality battery products with high cost performance, and
to develop diversified battery products with a view to meet varied
needs of branded products customers and OEM customers. In respect
of the own-brand business, the Group, through the Group’s “SCUDF
EBE" and “Chaolitongi2 1138
batteries and peripheral accessories for a variety of mobile phones.

" brands, focuses on selling rechargeable

The Group has launched various branded batteries and peripherals for
mobile phones to cater for the consumers’ demand in the mobile phone
market in China. As for the OEM business, the Group has provided
professional OEM services for domestic and overseas customers with
the trust of well-known customers such as Huawei, ZTE, Panasonic and
BBK Electronics and the Group’s production scale in OEM business has
been expanding. With regard to the bare battery cell business, each of
the bare battery cell factories of the Group has been in full operation,
enabling the integration of up- and down-stream businesses of the
Group into a complete industrial chain which further sharpens the
Group’s competitive edge.

By optimizing the business structure of the Group and allocating resources
to develop its upstream lithium bare battery cell business, the Group
has acquired core technologies for manufacturing rechargeable batteries
of mobile phones. These technologies entrench the Group’s existing
operation in the manufacturing of mobile phone batteries. Moreover,
with continuous R&D efforts backed by such technologies, the Group has
accumulated a number of technological achievements in the application
of lithium battery packs, which facilitates the Group’s identification of
further potential investment opportunities in the future.
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(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2012 2011 % Change
—E——F —T——F BEHEDL
Turnover S 1,821,620 1,653,011 10.2
(Loss)/Profit from Operations e (Fe) ) F) (201,253) 77,404 (360.0)
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to AREIERFEEA
Equity Holders of the Company FE(L (E598) /& F (162,815) 59,492 (373.7)
Total Assets BEME 2,113,100 1,998,181 5.8
(LBITDA)/EBITDA REFHFE - BIE - ER
a2z (BB /&R (118,117) 159,432 (174.1)
Basic (Loss)/Earnings Per Share BRERN (B18) AT
(RMB cents) (ARED) (15.78) 5.76 (374.0)
Diluted (Loss)/Earnings Per Share gkEs (B8 &8
(RMB cents) (ARES) (15.78) 5.76 (374.0)
Current Ratio (Times) mELE (%) 1.8 2.4 (25.0)
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%) B AATEM = 2 L3R (%) 24.9 11.0 13.9 pts /" BEDH
Cash Position BWEMAR 422,433 498,965 (15.3)
Proposed Final Dividend FORSARREIARE (Bl)
Per Share (HKD cents) - 2.0 -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 39, Kuaian Technology Zone

Mawei Economic and Technology Development Zone
Mawei District, Fuzhou

Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 5505, 55/F Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Huang Yan

Zhang Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Fang Jin
Yeung Mun Tai
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LEGAL ADVISER

Reed Smith Richards Butler

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Loke Yu (Chairman)
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang Jian Zhang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Loke Yu (Chairman)
Fang Jin
Wang Jing Zhong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

WEBSITE

http://www.scudgroup.com
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Dear shareholders,
BELIPRER -

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board"”) of SCUD Group Limited ("SCUD", the
“Company” or, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Company for the full
year from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2012 (the "Review Period").
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Fang Jin Chairman
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the global communication market witnessed drastic changes,
marked by a nosedive of the international industrial giants focusing on
feature mobile phones in contrast with a growing market share in the
global mobile phone market and a sustaining high growth momentum
for those international mobile phone manufacturers focusing on
smartphones. The global communication market has come into a period
of overwhelming transition from feature mobile phones to smartphones,
which will, in our view, be a gradual and ongoing trend. With stronger
functions than feature mobile phones, some mid-end smartphones are
bridging the price gap to feature mobile phones, and the decreasing
prices of smartphones are increasingly bringing consumers to embrace
smartphones instead of feature mobile phones. However, feature mobile
phones will not be completely eliminated, despite their market share
being gradually eroded by smartphones. In lock step with the plunging
sales volume and prices of feature mobile phones recently are the declined
sales volume and profit margin of replaceable backup batteries and
accessories for feature mobile phones. Given the variety of the existing
feature mobile phones, many accessories only suitable for feature mobile
phones are still marketed but are becoming stagnant in the market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBRESE

The Group’s overall performance during the Review Period was sub-
optimal, which was mainly attributable to the substantial loss as a result
of a significant downturn of its own-brand business performance. The
Group recorded turnover and loss attributable to the equity holders of
about RMB1,822 million and RMB 163 million respectively and basic losses
per share were approximately RMB15.78 cents for the year.

Facing challenges brought by the changing industry structure, the Group
has taken initiatives to realign its business strategy with market demands
and to leverage on its brand strength in diversifying its product lines. The
demands for traditional replaceable backup batteries for mobile phones,
being the major revenue contributor to the Group's own-brand business
for years, have been plunging as various high capacity portable power
supply kits have become a new mainstream in the smartphone accessories
market recently. As a result, the sales revenue from the own-brand
business recorded a sharp decline during the Review Period. Envisaging
that smartphones will inevitably become the mainstream in the future
communication industry, the Group will develop more battery products
and accessories for smartphones, aiming at better future growths in sales
and profitability through introducing new product lines with promising
potential to secure its position in branded product market.

In addition, recognizing the replaceable backup batteries becoming
stagnant and overstocked in large quantities in the market, the Group
took initiatives to communicate with major distributors and made
adjustments to its market sales strategies since the fourth quarter of
2012. Distributors who have partnered with SCUD for many years faced
problems such as inventory backlog and cash flow difficulties in recent
years and such problems adversely affected the normal operations of
the Group’s sales network. The stagnant overstocking directly attenuated
the capability of distributors to continue acquiring new products recently
launched by the Group, which in turn led to the Group’s inability to
effectively promote new products with the existing distribution channels.
Therefore, upon careful consideration, the Group’s senior management
decided to implement a refund policy whereby the Group refunded
its distributors for the unmarketable branded battery products of the
Group to assist distributors to respond to the great challenges from the
changing industrial structure. The initiative was designed to strengthen
the Group’s distribution network and indirectly protect its brand image,
facilitate the recovery of marketing channels and improve profitability
of distributors.
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Previously, the main competition strategy of the Group’s own-brand
business leveraged on the cost advantages as a result of scale expansion
through vertical integration of the Group’s production chain. Now, the
Group has to also take into account the plummeting sales of backup
batteries and accessories for feature mobile phones. The Group will
have to reposition its business strategy and proactively expand new
OEM customers to stabilize the Group’s income source, based upon
which the Group could eventually explore further potential investment
opportunities for its own-brand business. During the Review Period, the
steadily increasing OEM orders led to a year-on-year growth of 31.6%
in turnover of the OEM business. Most sales during the Review Period
were derived from OEM mobile phone batteries sold to major customers
including Huawei, ZTE and Panasonic.

On the bare battery cell business, all cell factories of the Group commenced
production during the Review Period, integrating the Group’s upstream
to downstream operations into an industry chain to further sharpen
the Group’s competitiveness. The Group's bare battery cell business
is expected to be of increasing importance in its business due to an
expected increase in orders with its battery cell factories, as underpinned
by the demand from domestic mobile phone manufacturers for medium-
and high-end domestically made bare battery cells as a result of the
emergence of smartphones.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will align its development strategy with
market changes in the mobile phone accessories industry which in turn
is expected to be driven by the evolvement of smartphones. While
devoting more resources in developing and producing battery products
with high cost performance, the Group will shift its primary focus from
developing its own-brand business to a balanced development of its
own-brand, OEM and bare battery cell business segments. The Group will
strive to attain maximum profit in the changing market, and to further
consolidate and improve its market position, with a view to enhancing
the brand influence of the Group.
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The Group has acquired core cell production technologies for mobile
phones through continuous investments in developing its upstream
lithium bare battery cell business. On the one hand, these technologies
help entrench the Group’s existing battery manufacturing business for
mobile phones. On the other hand, the Group has accumulated a
number of technological achievements in application of lithium battery
packs through the strengthened R&D activities, which facilitates the
identification of further potential investment opportunities in the future.
In the long run, the core cell production technologies, if applied to fields
beyond mobile phones, will be a significant positive factor for the Group’s
sustainable development.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to the Group's business partners and customers for their
continued support and trust. Also, | would like to extend my sincere
thanks to the Board, senior management and all our staff for their
dedication and hard work.

Fang Jin
Chairman

Fuzhou, the PRC
27 March 2013
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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960,900,000
1,252,700,000
1,264,900,000
1,527,400,000

1,653,000,000

SEGMENT TURNOVER
DEERE

39.7%

Percentage of own-brand sales
over total turnover

BAmEHE
hREEEASL

29.2%

Mobile phone battery
BBEREEL

6.9%

Portable power supply kits
1.9%

Chargers

1.5%

Bluetooth headsets
EFHK

0.2%

Other mobile phone peripherals

HBBEEREER

2007-2012 CAGR
2007-2012F FHEAERR

A

Gross Profit EF (Gross Profit Margin FEF|&)

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

45.0%

OEM BUSINESS
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Percentage of OEM sales
over total turnover
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43.0%
Mobile phone battery
BEBEREEL
0.9%
Notebook computer battery
ERABHED
1.1%
Chargers and other mobile
phone peripherals
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243,500,000 (25.3%)
263,800,000 (21.1%)
229,100,000 (18.1%)

260,800,000 (17.1%)
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2012, the global communication market witnessed drastic changes,
marked by a nosedive of the international industrial giants focusing on
feature mobile phones in contrast with a growing market share in the
global mobile phone market and a sustaining high growth momentum
for those international mobile phone manufacturers focusing on
smartphones. According to the latest statistics presented by the research
firm Gartner, Inc., 1.75 billion units of mobile phone were sold globally
in 2012, representing a year-on-year drop of 1.7% and the first decrease
since 2009. The slowdown in the growth of the global mobile phone
market was mainly attributable to factors such as a sharply declined
sales volume of feature mobile phones and the gloomy global economy.
According to the statistics of Gartner, Inc., smartphones continued to
drive the overall sales of mobile phones which recorded a global sales
volume of 207.7 million units in the fourth quarter of 2012, representing
a year-on-year increase of 38.3%, while the sales volume of feature
mobile phones decreased by 19.3% year-on-year to 264.4 million units.
As forecast by Gartner, Inc., the global sales volume of mobile phones
will reach 1.9 billion units in 2013, which will consist of a vast majority of
smartphones and the sales volume of feature mobile phones will continue
to decline. Similarly, the overall sales in the communications market of
China will also be led by smartphones with sluggish demands for feature
mobile phones. To conclude, the global communications market has come
into a period of overwhelming transition from feature mobile phones to
smartphones, which will be a gradual and ongoing trend.

The period from 2011 to 2012 is regarded as a period of rapid growth for
the domestic smartphone market. Since the third quarter of 2011, China
has surpassed the United States and become the largest smartphone
market worldwide. As forecast in the Quarterly Report on China‘s Mobile
Phone Market (2012Q3) prepared by the research firm IDC, the overall
shipment of mobile phones in China’s mobile phone market will reach
380 million units in 2013, representing a year-on-year growth of 5%;
and the shipment of smartphones will reach 300 million units with a
year-on-year increase of 44%, a slowdown compared with the growth up
to 130% in 2012 but still a strong figure. IDC also forecast that by the
end of 2013, there will be more than 500 million users of smartphones
in China. As a result, the year 2013 is still regarded by the industry as a
year of accelerated popularization of the domestic smartphones market
with an increasing market share of smartphones. In addition, amid the
industrial trend of intelligent consumer electronic products, various smart
terminals including smart television sets, tablet computers and smart
navigation systems will become increasingly popular.
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Smartphones have become the leading drive to the global mobile phone
business, and the advent of the smartphone has also revolutionized the
feature mobile phone industry. The mobile phone industry has seen a
variation of hallmarks and trends from previous times, both in terms
of brand competition landscape or in product mix, where multi-core
processors, high-resolution and large touch screen, built-in high-pixel
digital camera and 4G technology have become the benchmarks for
the future generation high-end smartphones. Meanwhile, the mobile
phone accessories industry is aligning closely with the aspiration of
smartphones. The emergence of smartphones not only redefined the
mobile phone industry, but also drove an enormous product chain.
Additional peripheral products for smartphones are being introduced,
including protective covers, styluses, chargers, bluetooth keyboards,
bluetooth headsets and portable power supply kits as well as a variety of
innovative products such as external lenses. Smartphones, as a portable
device, rely on batteries as its power source and with more advanced
functions, they tend to consume more power. Battery endurance has
become one of the major concerns for mobile phone users as the use
of some peripheral products require even more frequent recharging of
mobile phone batteries, as evidenced by the common practice of daily
charging of most smartphones by users. Furthermore, the emerging
wireless peripheral products for mobile phones consume power at a
faster rate. Therefore, as driven by the increasing demand for external
rechargeable batteries with compact size and large capacity, various
high capacity portable power supply kits have recently become the new
mainstream product in the smartphone accessories market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Own-brand Business

During the Review Period, the Group recorded a significant loss, mainly
due to a notable downturn in the performance of its own-brand business.
While China witnessed the scale of advancement of 3G technology in the
market and the increasing efforts of operators in promoting smartphones,
the emerging smartphones have also led to the plunging demand for
feature mobile phones. Furthermore, continuous price cuts of the newly
launched models and the intense competition in the medium- to low-end
mobile phone market led to the plummeting sales volume and price of
feature mobile phones. Consequently, the declined sales volume and
profit margin of backup batteries and peripheral accessories for feature
mobile phones resulted in the significant decrease in sales revenue and
profit of own-branded products for 2012 as compared to 2011.
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Difficulties for own-brand business

The recent popularity of the iPhone and Android phones, and the
popularization and strong functionality of mobile devices such as
smartphones, are challenging the market position of feature mobile
phones. In addition to better functions than those of feature mobile
phones, some mid-end smartphones are being priced closely to feature
mobile phones, and the price drops of smartphones will lead to a
switch-over by consumers from feature mobile phones to smartphones.
Smartphones have become the mainstream in a number of major
countries, and the Chinese market is particularly noteworthy. However,
we believe that feature mobile phones will not completely disappear from
the market, despite their market share being taken up by smartphones.
Given the variety of the existing feature mobile phones, many relevant
accessories are still marketed but those only suitable for feature mobile
phones are becoming stagnant with the emergence of smartphones.

Although smartphones consume much more power due to their advanced
functionality, the popularity of iPhone, one of the first devices which
adopts a design of built-in battery, did not bring business opportunity
for the traditional replaceable backup battery industry for mobile phones.
To meet the power needs, users of iPhone can only resort to external
rechargeable batteries, which are mostly distinctive from the traditional
replaceable backup batteries for mobile phones in terms of versatility and
capacity. As a result, various high capacity portable power supply kits
have recently become a new mainstream in the smartphone accessories
market. The needs for replaceable backup batteries for feature mobile
phones, which are being inevitably taken over by portable power supply
kits gradually, have declined significantly in recent years. Accordingly,
the plummeting demands for replaceable backup batteries for mobile
phones, being the major revenue contributor to the Group’s own-brand
business for years, are adversely affecting its own-brand business.

The emerging portable power supply kits are taking over an increasing
share previously held by traditional power supply accessories for mobile
phones including replaceable backup batteries, which thus became
stagnant and overstocked in large quantities amid the substantial changes
in the global mobile phone industry structure and the rapid shifts in
demands in the communications market. Distributors who have partnered
with SCUD for many years faced problems such as inventory backlog
and cash flow difficulties in recent years and such problems adversely
affected the normal operations of the Group’s sales network. The stagnant
overstocking directly attenuated the capability of distributors to continue
acquiring new products recently launched by the Group, which in turn
led to the Group’s inability to effectively promote new products with the
existing distribution channels. To assist distributors to respond to the
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challenges from the changing industry structure, the Group took initiatives
to communicate with major distributors and made adjustments to its
market sales strategies in the fourth quarter of 2012. Supporting measures
for distributors were adopted including a refund policy whereby the Group
refunded its distributors for the unmarketable battery products under
the Group’s “SCUDFRTERE"” and “ChaolitongiE /138" brands to offset
trade receivables, allowing them to tackle problems in inventory backlog
and cashflow difficulties and to purchase new products of the Group.
The major decisions on assisting distributors in liquidating unmarketable
products of the Group by way of a refund by the Group, restructuring of
sales network and trade receivables due from distributors were made by
the Group’s management through careful consideration and evaluation of
the pros and cons of the refund on unmarketable branded mobile phone
battery products of the Group. The initiatives are designed to strengthen
the Group’s distribution network and indirectly protect its brand image,
as the management believed that if the Group failed to effectively assist
the distributors to liquidate their significant slow-moving inventories, step
up the recovery of marketing channels and improve profitability of such
distributors, the entire distribution system may collapse and the sales plan
of new products would also be materially and adversely affected. If the
distributors were to liquidate unmarketable products of the Group at low
prices under repayment pressure, the Group’s brand image and pricing
system would also collapse. The refund plan is expected to complete in the
first half of 2013 and comprises three stages: the focus in the 1st stage is
the liquidation of inventories in retail and intermediary channels; the 2nd
stage will focus on improving supply chain management and the product
introduction and planning model of the Group; and in the 3rd stage, the
Group will take efforts in upgrading its business model, including improving
the profit sharing structure with distribution channels.

During the Review Period, a total of approximately 4 million pieces of
batteries were refunded to the Group. The Group made a provision for
impairment of the refund in the fourth quarter of 2012, as well as a
provision for impairment loss due to the refund expected to occur in the
first half of 2013. The provision for impairment loss is estimated based
on the estimated quantity, agreed price and net realisable value of the
refunded products. As a result, the Group recorded one-off impairment
in the amount of approximately RMB152 million during the Review
Period. Where the actual refunded quantity is more than estimated,
further provision may arise in 2013.

In addition, the demand for “Chaolitongi /73" brand’s mobile
phone batteries was also affected during the Review Period. After
an impairment test on intangible assets acquired upon acquisition of
“Chaolitong#8 /738" brand, including the trade names and patents
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and its distribution network, conducted by an independent valuer, the
impairment of the trade names and patents and its distribution network
in the amount of approximately RMB32.55 million (2011: RMB21.07
million) and RMB35.89 million (2011: nil) was recognized respectively.
The impairment loss of approximately RMB68.44 million has included in
“Administration expenses” in the consolidated income statement. As of
31 December 2012, the net carrying value of intangible assets acquired
upon acquisition of “Chaolitong# /738" brand was approximately
RMB39.80 million (2011: RMB114.0 million).

The Group intends to actively look for various feasible ways of handling the
refunded mobile phones batteries, so as to mitigate the loss to be borne
by the Group, and will ascertain the number of refunded products, the
condition of those products and the possibility of re-using or re-selling the
refunded products after completion of the entire refund exercise. Based
on the current preliminary assessment made by the management, some
of the refunded batteries can continue to be used in non-communications
products after making simple modifications. Therefore, re-selling those
batteries to manufacturers of non-communications products is one of
the feasible ways. However, even though some of the batteries can be
re-used, it may not be cost-effective in practice taking into account that
the retrieval of bare battery cells from the refunded batteries for re-use
in other new models of batteries not only incurs additional processing
costs and testing expenses, a large number of batteries may also have
to be scrapped due to possible damage during the recycling process.
Consequently, it is unlikely to re-use the refunded bare battery cells in
new models of Scud batteries so as not to affect the quality of the new
products. Batteries that can only be used in feature mobile phone models
that have been phased out or discontinued will be directly scrapped.
Overseas markets such as Africa and India have a certain demand for
such refunded batteries, but as the retail price of mobile phone batteries
in these countries is lower than the domestic retail price and re-selling
the batteries overseas will incur additional costs including transportation
expenses, re-selling of the refunded batteries overseas is unlikely to be
feasible.

Facing the challenges arising from the evolving industry structure, and
whilst focusing on the production and sale of battery products and
aggressive expansion of upstream business, the Group tapped on its
brand strength to expand its product lines and develop and produce
more battery products with high cost performance such as high capacity
portable power supply kits. Diversified mobile phone accessories were
also rolled out, including high-end chargers and bluetooth headsets in a
bid to secure future growths in sales and profit and its position in branded
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product market. Envisaging that high— and medium-end smartphones will
inevitably become the mainstream in the future communication industry,
the Group will develop more battery products and peripheral accessories
for smartphones, aiming at better future growth through introducing
new product lines with promising potential.

Restructuring the sales network for own-brand business

On market strategy, in addition to further restructuring its product
portfolio to align with the mobile phone market, the Group intends to
gradually restructure the domestic sales network for its “SCUDFRERR"
and “Chaolitong#& /738" brands in 2013. Through the years the Group
had been relying on the vast domestic distribution network to market
its branded products, seeking to increase products’ market coverage
and therefore the sales volume through comprehensive coverage of
multiple sales channels. However, the hiking domestic rentals and
wages are pushing up the costs of traditional sales channels managed
by distributors, worsen by the higher pressures on their inventory
management and capital operation arising from the requirement of
deploying the products to be marketed in a short period of time, as
a result of the fast-changing industries of both feature mobile phones
and the related accessories due to the emergence of smartphones. The
management believes that the Group’s overall interests are indirectly
related to the success or failure of distributors. In this connection, the
Group seeks to break away from the restriction of traditional channels by
gradually shrinking its traditional channels, aiming to reduce the number
of its national first-tier distributors from approximately 500 at present to
approximately 100. Meanwhile, the Group will proactively diversify into
other sales channels, with an aim at a mix of traditional and modern
distribution channels complementing each other.

The management realized consumers’ habits are evolving, as nowadays
online shopping has become a trend among most domestic consumers.
In particular, the youth generation prefers to buy what they need through
online stores conveniently, and via the Internet they can also acquire
further product information. Given their unique marketing attraction
and potential, online stores sales are expected to substitute to some
extent traditional terminals sales. The Group has started to sell products
through domestic well-known online shopping platforms such as Tmall,
360buy.com and QQ Mall, etc. Large-scale online stores established on
well-known e-commerce platforms provide favourable conditions for the
Group to expand its online sales channels, and allow the Group to build
up customers confidence and, effectively upgrade its brand image and
directly boost its sales, especially when linking the online stores with
the Group’s corporate website. In the future, the Group will continue
to promote online marketing, with a view to delivering its products to
consumers in the fastest and most efficient manner.
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During the Review Period, the sales volume of own-brand mobile phone
batteries and portable power supply kits reached a total of approximately
34.7 million units (2011: 52.6 million units), contributing a turnover of
RMB656 million (2011: RMB826 million). In particular, 62.1% (2011:
77.9%) sales revenue of the own-brand mobile phone batteries and
portable power supply kits was derived from our “SCUDFRERR" brand,
and the remaining 37.9% (2011: 22.1%) was derived from " Chaolitongi8
H#B" brand.

OEM Business

Proactively expanding the original equipment manufacturing
business

Previously, the competition strategy of Group’s own-brand business
leveraged on the cost advantages as a result of scale expansion through
vertical integration of the Group’s production chain. Facing current changes
in the mobile phone industry structure, the Group has to also take into
account the plummeting sales of backup batteries and accessories for feature
phones, which poses great challenges to the Group’s business strategy
coupled with the hiking domestic production costs. The management
believes the future will inevitably be an era of smartphones. However, it
is unrealistic for the Group to swiftly complete the transformation from
a manufacturer of backup batteries and accessories for feature mobile
phones to that of batteries and accessories for smartphones in a short
period of time. At present therefore, the Group will have to reposition its
business strategy and proactively expand new OEM customers to stabilize
the income source, based upon which the Group could gradually explore
further potential investment opportunities for its own-brand business. An
OEM manufacturer must possess competitiveness in creating value and
identify the value as recognized by customers and consumers. SCUD’s value
has been well recognized over the years in terms of its excellent quality.
Therefore, the management believes that by virtue of its reputation in the
industry and excellent quality, the “SCUDRERE " brand is well positioned
to secure additional cooperation opportunities with international renowned
mobile phone manufacturers, and its OEM business will continue to grow
and become a driver to the Group’s growth.

The rapid rise of large telecommunication equipment manufacturers
like ZTE and Huawei has brought the Group's OEM business a steady
growth. In order to improve production efficiency and product quality, the
Group has upgraded its equipment in phases as scheduled, and installed
additional high-quality automated and semi-automated machinery. During
the Review Period, thanks to the growth in smartphones demand, the
steadily increasing OEM orders led to a year-on-year growth of 31.6% in
turnover of the OEM business. Most sales during the Review Period were
derived from OEM mobile phone batteries for major customers including
Huawei, ZTE and Panasonic. The gradually expanding OEM business is
attributable to the Group’s commitment to product quality throughout
the years, as well as the long-term cooperation with renowned mobile
phone manufacturers to upgrade the Group’s manufacturing technology
and steadily increase the scale of its production.
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During the Review Period, the Group’s OEM business recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB820 million (2011: RMB624 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 31.6% and accounting for 45.0% (2011:
37.7%) of the Group’s total turnover. The sales volume of OEM mobile
phone batteries reached approximately 27.0 million units (2011: 20.7
million units) during the Review Period, representing a year-on-year
increase of 30.4%.

Bare Battery Cell Business
Proactively exploring up-stream business

All factories of the Group for its bare battery cell business commenced
production during the Review Period, integrating the Group’s upstream
to downstream operations into an industry chain to further sharpen
the Group’s competitiveness. The Group’s bare battery cells business
currently ranks ahead in domestic market in terms of product quality,
and using approximately 22.1% of the bare battery cells produced for
intra-group supply during the Review Period. The Group’s investment in
the upstream bare battery cell business has contributed to better control
on material costs and its gross margin and thus the higher competitive
edge of downstream products.

The Group’s bare battery cell business is expected to be of increasing
importance in the Group’s business due to an expected increase in
orders with its battery cell factories, as underpinned by the demand
from domestic mobile phone manufacturers for medium- and high-
end domestically made bare battery cells driven by the emergence of
smartphones. Since most of the domestic bare battery cell manufacturers
mainly provide medium- and low-end bare battery cells with product and
quality distinct from imported high-end products, our focus on medium-
to high-end bare battery cells have created another profit generator while
providing stable intra-group supply of quality bare battery cells.

During the Review Period, the Group’s bare battery cell business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB274 million (2011: RMB113 million), accounting

for approximately 15.0% (2011: 6.8%) of the Group’s total turnover.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will align its development strategy with
market changes in the mobile phone accessories industry which in turn
is expected to be driven by the evolvement of smartphones. While
devoting more resources in developing and producing battery products
with high cost performance, the Group will shift its primary focus from
developing its own-brand business to a balance development of its own-
brand, OEM and bare battery cell business segments. The Group shall
strive to attain maximum profit in the changing market, and to further
consolidate and improve its market position, with a view to enhancing
the brand influence of the Group.
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Developing new energy battery business

Lithium has generally been identified as an essential element for the next
generation of new energy amidst the increasing global awareness of
environmental protection and global efforts in identifying energy saving
and environmentally friendly alternative energy sources. The development
of high-power lithium batteries for electric vehicles is currently one of
the most important areas of environmental protection and energy saving.
In addition to applications in electric tools, electric bicycles, electric golf
carts, electric motorcycles, BEV, PHEV, HEV, etc., the high-power lithium
battery technology can be extended to applications in renewable energy
power storage systems, uninterruptible power systems and start-up
batteries for fuel vehicles., etc..

The Group has acquired core cell production technologies for mobile
phones through continuous investments in developing its upstream
lithium bare battery cell business. On one hand, these technologies helps
entrenching the Group’s existing battery manufacturing business for
mobile phones. On the other hand, the Group has accumulated a number
of technological achievements in application of lithium battery packs
through the strengthened research and development (“R&D") activities,
which facilitates the identification of further potential investment
opportunities in the future. In the long run, the core cell production
technologies, if applied to fields beyond mobile phones, will be a
significant positive factor for the Group’s sustainable development.

The Group has also undertaken R&D of motive power lithium batteries
for communication and energy storage equipment. Currently the Group’s
new energy battery business is at an initial stage, as motive power
battery technologies pose a high barrier, and it has yet to achieve
actual industrialization. Moreover, a motive power battery enterprise
must possess a considerable production capacity to meet the challenges
arising from scale production and a high percentage of R&D investment.
Therefore, the new energy battery business has a limited contribution
to the Group’s overall current business. The management believes that
with the increasing number of lithium battery manufacturers and the
broadening application of energy storage systems, the manufacturing
costs of lithium batteries will be lowered accordingly. Given the current
trend towards production of high-capacity lithium battery products, it is
expected that lithium batteries will have considerable room for application
in the future. The investments in new energy batteries are in line with the
Group’s strategic vision, as the R&D of core production equipment for
motive power energy storage batteries will enable the Group to rapidly
deploy related businesses and develop new profit generators. In this
regard, the management envisages that in the future, the new growth
momentum will mainly derive from motive power batteries.
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In the future, the infrastructure investments of telecommunications
operators in China which is, one of the largest communications markets
worldwide, are expected to further increase. Communications backup
power source, a R&D focus of the Group, is a key infrastructure in
the whole communications network in providing uninterrupted power
supply for communications equipment and thus plays an important
role in stabilizing and securing network operations as a whole. As a
pioneer domestic mobile phone lithium battery manufacturer, SCUD
Group possesses the market and technology prerequisites for developing
the communications backup power source market.

Looking in to the future, the Group will demonstrate its commitment
to:

e  optimizing its product portfolio and customer mix, and continuously
developing new products to enrich its product offerings;

®* enhancing centralized resources utilization to improve overall
operating efficiency and achieve production cost savings, with
an aim to improve competitiveness and cost performance of
products;

e strengthening the cooperation with existing OEM customers, and
seeking cooperation with additional internationally renowned
mobile phone manufacturers to increase the market share of SCUD
in the mobile phone battery OEM sector;

e reinforcing upstream battery production technology R&D, and
improving production process and product quality by upgrading
equipment to forge an industry chain integrating upstream to
downstream operations;

e strengthening R&D to be well prepared for future development of

new energy business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded consolidated
RMB1,653.0
increased by approximately 10.2% as compared to that

turnover of approximately RMB1,821.6 million (2011:
million),
in 2011. Gross profit for 2012 and loss from operations for 2012
were approximately RMB294.4 million (2011: RMB290.7 million) and
approximately RMB201.3 million (2011: Profit from operations - RMB77.4
million) respectively. The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 of
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approximately RMB162.8 million as compared to a profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2011 of approximately RMB59.5 million. The Group recorded LBITDA
of approximately RMB118.1 million (2011: EBITDA — RMB159.4 million)
for the year. Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2012
was approximately RMB15.78 cents (2011:
— RMB5.76 cents).

Basic earnings per share

Turnover

In 2012, the sales of mobile phone rechargeable batteries remain the
major revenue driver of the Group, while the sales of bare battery cells
was the Group’s second major revenue contributor. Sales of approximately
RMB1,314.7 million (2011: RMB1,379.8 million) came from mobile
phone batteries which accounted for 72.2% (2011: 83.5%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover, of which approximately RMB531.0 million
(2011: RMB809.5 million) was generated from the own-brand business
segment and approximately RMB783.7 million (2011: RMB570.3 million)
was generated from the OEM business segment, which represents
approximately 29.2% (2011: 49.0%) and 43.0% (2011: 34.5%) of the
Group’s consolidated turnover respectively.

Sales of approximately RMB273.6 million (2011: RMB112.7 million) was
contributed by the upstream bare battery cells manufacturing business,
which accounted for approximately 15.0% (2011: 6.8%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover.

Sales of portable power supply kits and bluetooth headsets contributed
approximately RMB125.0 million(2011:RMB16.6 million) and approximately
RMB27.2 million (2011: RMB14.4 million) to the Group’s consolidated
turnover respectively, which accounted for approximately 6.9% (2011:
1.0%) and approximately 1.5% (2011: 0.9%) of the Group’s turnover
respectively.

RMB56.4 million) was
generated from chargers which accounted for approximately 1.9% (2011:

Sales of approximately RMB34.4 million (2011:

3.4%) of the Group’s turnover. Sales of approximately RMB16.9 million
(2011: RMB29.3 million) was generated from the sales of OEM notebook
computer batteries, which represents approximately 0.9% (2011: 1.8%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

In 2012, the total revenue from the own-brand business segment
accounted for approximately 39.7% of the Group’s consolidated turnover
(2011: 55.4%) and the total revenue from the OEM business accounted
for approximately 45.0% of the Group’s consolidated turnover (2011:
37.7%). Approximately 15.0% of the Group's total turnover (2011: 6.8%)
was generated from the bare battery cell business segment.

For the own-brand business segment, the total revenue contributed to
the Group in 2012 decreased by approximately 21.1% to approximately
RMB722.3 million (2011: RMB915.3 million). Approximately 61.8%
(2011: 73.6%) of the Group’s own-brand products were sold under the
“SCUDMERR" brand while approximately 38.2% (2011: 26.4%) were
sold under the “Chaolitongi#8 713" brand. As the total sales volume of
mobile phone batteries of these two brands dropped by approximately
19.1 million pieces to a total of approximately 33.4 million pieces in
2012, the total revenue generated from the sales of own-brand mobile
phone batteries was dropped by approximately 34.4% to approximately
RMB531.0 million (2011: RMB809.5 million) as compared with 2011.

As for other own-brand products, sales of own-brand portable
power supply kits amounted to approximately RMB125.0 million in
2012 (2011: RMB16.6 million). Chargers and bluetooth headsets
contributed approximately RMB34.4 million (2011: RMB56.4 million)
and approximately RMB27.2 million (2011: RMB14.4 million) to the
Group’s consolidated turnover respectively.

For the OEM business segment, the total revenue contributed to the Group
increased by approximately 31.6% from approximately RMB623.5 million
in 2011 to approximately RMB820.4 million in 2012. The rapid rise of
large telecommunication equipment manufacturers like ZTE and Huawei
has brought the Group’s OEM business a steady growth. The turnover
of OEM mobile phone batteries significantly increased by approximately
37.4% to approximately RMB783.7 million (2011: RMB570.3 million) in
2012, and the sales volume of OEM mobile phone batteries grew by
approximately 30.2% to approximately 27.0 million pieces (2011: 21.0
million pieces) in 2012. Sales of approximately RMB16.9 million was
generated from the sales of OEM notebook computer batteries (2011:
RMB29.3 million).

For the bare battery cell business segment, approximately RMB273.6
million was contributed to the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2012,
which represents an increase of 142.7% as compared to that in 2011
(2011: RMB112.7 million). Sales volume of bare battery cells were
approximately 33.2 million pieces (2011: 15.6 million pieces) for 2012.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB1,527.2
million in 2012 (2011: RMB1,362.4 million), representing an increase
of approximately 12.1% as compared to 2011. Direct materials, direct
labour and other production costs accounted for approximately 83.4%
(2011: 86.1%), 8.8% (2011: 5.2%) and 7.8% (2011: 8.7%) of the
cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased from approximately
17.6% for 2011 to approximately 16.2% for 2012.

For the Group’s own-brand business, the overall gross profit margin for
2012 was approximately 17.2%, decreased by 2.1 percentage points
from approximately 19.3% in 2011. The average gross profit margin for
own-brand mobile phone batteries dropped from approximately 20.6%
in 2011 to approximately 17.4% in 2012. The gross profit margins for
mobile phone batteries of “SCUDFRZERR"” brand and “Chaolitongi
J3#" brand in 2012 were approximately 21.9% (2011: 24.0%) and
approximately 11.2% (2011: 9.1%), respectively.

For the OEM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2012 was
approximately 15.1% (2011: 15.2%). The gross profit margin for OEM
mobile phone batteries increased from approximately 15.2% in 2011
to approximately 15.3% in 2012 while the gross profit margin for OEM
notebook computer batteries decreased from approximately 16.6% in
2011 to approximately 14.7% in 2012.

For the bare battery cells business, the gross profit margin in 2012 was
approximately 17.5% (2011: 16.9%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB11.3 million (2011: RMB12.8 million)
in 2012 was mainly comprised of approximately RMB3.8 million (2011:
RMB3.7 million) being bank interest income and approximately RMB2.2
million (2011: RMB0.8 million) being processing income.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB59.5 million
(2011: RMB57.5 million) accounted for approximately 3.3% (2011: 3.5%)
of the Group’s turnover in 2012. The selling and distribution expenses
for the Review Period comprised approximately RMB7.3 million (2011:
RMB9.3 million) being the expenses incurred for the amortisation of all
renovation spending, approximately RMB7.1 million (2011: RMB13.0
million) was spent on advertising and promotion in 2012 and staff
salaries and welfare of approximately RMB14.4 million (2011: RMB10.2
million).
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Administrative expenses of approximately RMB288.6 million (2011:
RMB164.9 million) accounted for approximately 15.8% (2011: 10.0%) of
the Group’s turnover in 2012. Administrative expenses mainly comprised
of R&D expenses of approximately RMB72.3 million (2011: RMB49.2
million), staff salaries and welfare of approximately RMB37.2 million
(2011: RMB33.0 million), depreciation of approximately RMB13.0 million
(2011: RMB13.0 million), and approximately RMB7.8 million (2011:
RMB10.6 million) being amortisation of intangible assets mainly arising
from acquisition of “Chaolitong# 138" . In addition, an impairment loss
on the “Chaolitongi 773" brand of RMB68.4 million (2011: RMB21.1
million) was charged to the consolidated income statement in 2012.

During the Review Period, the Group implemented a refund policy
whereby the Group refunded its distributors for the unmarketable
own-brand mobile phone battery products which they had previously
purchased from the Group during the period from 1 January 2010 to 30
June 2012. A total of approximately 4 million pieces of batteries were
refunded to the Group during the Review Period. The Group made a
provision for impairment of the refund product in the fourth quarter
of 2012, as well as a provision for impairment for the relevant loss due
to the refund product expected to occur during the first half of 2013.
The Group recorded an one-off impairment provision of approximately
RMB151.7 million (2011: Nil) during the Review Period.

Finance costs of approximately RMB13.8 million (2011: RMB10.2 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders

In 2012, the Group recorded loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately RMB162.8 million as compared to a profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2011 of approximately RMB59.5 million.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2012
was approximately RMB422.4 million, decreased by approximately
RMB76.6 million (at 31 December 2011: RMB499.0 million). The Group
recorded a net cash outflow from operating activities of approximately
RMB177.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 as compared to
a net cash inflow from operating activities of approximately RMB136.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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The Group's bank borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately RMB289.8 million (at 31 December 2011:
RMB147.8 million) were carried at floating interest rates. There was no
particular seasonality of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored
capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group divided by
total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed
as a percentage of interest bearing loans and other borrowings over the
total equity of approximately RMB1,163.4 million (at 31 December 2011:
RMB1,347.7 million) was approximately 24.9% as at 31 December 2012
(at 31 December 2011:
facilities as at 31 December 2012 was approximately RMB143.7 million
(at 31 December 2011: RMB123.6 million).

11.0%). Bank deposits pledged for banking

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.8 times (at 31 December 2011: 2.4 times) based on current assets of
approximately RMB1,672.8 million (at 31 December 2011: RMB1,476.8
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB945.9 million (at 31
December 2011: RMB626.6 million).

Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 114.6 days for the
year ended 31 December 2012 as compared to approximately 98.4
days for the year ended 31 December 2011. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 96.5 days for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
compared to approximately 75.1 days for the year ended 31 December
2011. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 134.2 days for
the year ended 31 December 2012 as compared to approximately 94.6

days for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2012 was approximately
RMB726.9 million, decreased by approximately 14.5% from the balance
of approximately RMB850.1 million recorded as at 31 December 2011.
Net assets as at 31 December 2012 was approximately RMB1,163.4
million, decreased by approximately RMB184.3 million over the balance
as at 31 December 2011.
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Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

During the Review Period, the Group acquired the remaining 30% interest
in Joint Smart Holdings Limited which in turn becomes a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. The consideration of RMB2,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,000) was paid in cash. The remaining non-controlling interests and
other payables balance of approximately RMB50.3 million at the date
of the acquisition was derecognised. The difference of approximately
RMB50.3 million between the amount of non-controlling interests and
other payables derecognised and the consideration paid was credited
to accumulated profits in equity.

During the Review Period, the Group disposed of 10% of its interest
in Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hongde”) and
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde”) which in
turn became 60% owned subsidiaries of the Group. The consideration
of approximately RMB9.6 million was received in cash. An amount of
approximately RMB10.6 million, being the proportionate share of the
carrying amounts of the net assets of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde at the date of partial disposal, has been transferred to the non-
controlling interests. The difference of approximately RMB1.0 million
between the amount of additional non-controlling interests recognised
and the consideration received was debited to accumulated profits in
equity.

Save as disclosed above, the Group made no significant investment nor
did it make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans of approximately RMB5.5 million (at
31 December 2011: RMBO0.6 million) were secured by the Group’s assets
and bank loans of approximately RMB284.3 million (2011: RMB147.2
million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group's capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2012
amounting to approximately RMB10.4 million (at 31 December 2011:
RMB5.8 million) was mainly attributed to the setup of the bare battery
cell production plant in Dongguan and acquisition of equipment.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not provide any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and did not involve
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there was no change in the share capital of
the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2012, the Group conducted its business transactions principally
in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material difficulties
or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations in
currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank balances
denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong Kong Dollars,
their proportion to the Group’s total assets is insignificant. The Directors
considered that no hedging of exchange risk is required and no financial
instruments were used for hedging purposes during 2012. Nevertheless,
the management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure
and will take prudent measures as and when it is appropriate.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 5,064 full-time employees
(2011: 4,641). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined by
the personal performance, professional qualification, industry experience
of the employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all
levels of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme. The
management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group on a regular
basis and evaluates the working performance of the employees. The
remuneration of the employees includes salaries, allowances, year-end
bonus and social insurance. According to the relevant prevailing laws and
regulations of the PRC, the Group has participated in the social insurance
plans set up by the related local government authorities, including
pension funds, medical insurance (including maternity insurance),
unemployment insurance and work-related injury insurance. The Group
has also participated in the mandatory provident fund scheme for its
Hong Kong employees in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all share options granted under

the Pre-IPO share options scheme adopted by the Company prior to its
listing have expired.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 54, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded
in December 2006. Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s
developmental planning, operational and corporate investment decision-
making and brand strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for
collective decision-making for years and has set a very clear direction
for SCUD product management and brand construction. He commenced
his career at the age of 18, and has accumulated over twenty years
of experience in the mobile phone accessories industry and related
operation management. He has very keen discernment and vision on
the exploration of brand market and the marketability of new products.
Prior to the establishment of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) in 1997, Mr. Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor,
in the sale of communication products and accessories in the PRC. In
December 1996, he established Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Cai Hong") in conjunction with partners including Mr. Lin
Chao (and established Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has
received several awards including:

2003 National Advanced Individual On Projects of End
Users’ Satisfaction
2004 Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in China
2004 Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector
2005 China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand Construction
2005 The Mudell's World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy
2006 Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy
2006 National Excellent Managers of Users’ Satisfaction

Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and Technological
Development Region.
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Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of each of Swift Joy Holdings
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Right Grand
Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2012, Mr. Fang was interested in an aggregate of 504,240,000 shares,
representing approximately 48.86% of the issued share capital of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 52, is an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible for the
management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the Group in
July 1997. He had been the managers of the research and development
department, sales department, planning department, production
department and quality control departments of Scud Electronics, and
had been director, vice general manager and vice president of Scud
Electronics. He has abundant experience in junior level management
in OEM business development, brand promotion, product research and
development and quality control. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo was
a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC navy mainly responsible for
establishing and maintaining wireless telecommunication systems. Mr.
Guo has over 29 years of experience in the research and development
and quality management in electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from
the Navy Senior Electronic Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree
in radio telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2012,
Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing approximately
1.74% of the issued share capital of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.
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Huang Yan, aged 33, is an executive Director and the general manager
of the Scud E-commerce Center. Ms. Huang is responsible for the main
operation of the Group’s own brand e-commerce business division,
brand culture construction, brand market integration, development and
integration of sales distribution channel for SCUD’s network. Ms. Huang
accumulated years of experience in the business of telecommunication
products and is dedicated to technology innovation, management,
establishment and maintenance of distribution channels of the Group.
Capitalizing on rich experience in operation of traditional channels gained
over the years, Ms. Huang managed to seize the opportunity of rapid
development of e-commerce and expanded the foothold of the “SCUD
FRERR"” brand in the PRC. Her contributions were essential in making
the “SCUDFRERR" brand become one of the most valuable and most
influential brands in the PRC market, driving the business growth of
the “SCUDRERR" brand to achieve large scale production, expanding
product offerings of the Group as well as eventually increasing the
Group's presence in the global market.

Ms. Huang graduated from the Fujian Cadet Academy of Economic
Management in 1999 in the specialty of trading. She is currently a
master degree student at Xiamen University. She joined the Group in
February 2001 and has served as the operation manager, the deputy
general manager, the executive deputy general manager and the general
manger of the Groups’ own brand business division. She has in-depth
understanding of the management of network brand business, production
planning and team building. She was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 30 December 2009. As at 31 December 2012, Ms.
Huang did not have any equity interest in the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Zhang Li, aged 52, is an executive Director and the general manager
of Scud Electronics, and is responsible for the entire operations of Scud
Electronics. The business of Scud Electronics is the production of OEM
products, including mobile phone batteries, chargers, notebook computer
batteries and motive batteries. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October
2003 and had been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in the
industrial design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager of the
research and development department, of the accessories department
and of the sales department of Fujian Communications and Broadcasting
Industrial Company. He has more than 30 years of experience in the
telecommunication industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Mechanical
Engineering Faculty of Jiangxi University in 1978. He was granted the
qualification of practising as an engineer in 1992 and was granted the
qualification of practising as a senior engineer in 1999. He was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2010. As at
31 December 2012, Mr. Zhang did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and Chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company, respectively. Dr. Loke has over 37 years of experience
in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from the University of South
Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Dr. Loke is currently
the company secretary of Minth Group Limited (Stock Code: 425) and
serves as an independent non-executive director of Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005), VODone Limited (Stock Code: 82), Sino
Distillery Group Limited (Stock Code: 39), China Fire Safety Enterprise
Group Limited (Stock Code: 445), Winfair Investment Company Limited
(Stock Code: 287), Zhong An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672),
Chiho-Tiande Group Limited (Stock Code: 976) and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), all being companies listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock
Exchange”). He joined the Company as an independent non-executive
Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31 December 2012, Dr. Loke did not
have any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO.
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Wang Jing Zhong, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and graduated
from East China University of Science & Technology with a Bachelor’s
degree in chemistry. He has more than 15 years of experience in the
management of the battery industry. He had served as the engineer-
in-charge of the household products division in the Ministry of Light
Industries, as deputy department head of the campus department of
the Education Bureau, as the deputy officer-in-charge of the Household
Products Office, and as the secretary general of China Battery Industry
Association. He is currently the executive vice-president of China Battery
Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 3 December 2006. Mr. Wang is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tianneng Power International
Limited (Stock Code: 819), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2012, Mr. Wang did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Wang Jian Zhang, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company and a senior engineer.
Mr. Wang graduated from Xian Military Institute of Telecommunication
Engineering. He has more than 25 years of experience in electronic
technology and management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang had
served as deputy director of the Promotion Division of Comprehensive
Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics Industry, director
of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment Division under
Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-general of the
Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics, and
director-general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under the
Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2006. As at
31 December 2012, Mr. Wang did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 36, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and is responsible
for the overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an international accounting
firm. He has more than 13 years of experience in the accounting field.
He has a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and Accounting.
Mr. Yeung joined the Group in September 2005.

Zhang Hao, aged 41, is the general manager of Scud Battery Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the main operation of the Group’s own brand
business division, brand culture construction, brand market integration
and development of sales distribution channel. Mr. Zhang accumulated
years of experience in the business of telecommunication products and
is dedicated to technology innovation, management and establishment
and maintenance of distribution channels. Mr. Zhang obtained the
qualification of internal corporate mentor in 2007. Mr. Zhang completed
the Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) programme of
Tsinghua University in 2009 and obtained the qualification of corporate
trainer in 2010. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in August 2000 and has
served as the supervisor of the Group’s own brand business division, the
manager of project division, the manager of research and development
division and the general manager of marketing center. Since joining
the Group, Mr. Zhang has made valuable contributions to obtaining
numerous patents of the Group.

Chen Wei, aged 42, is the general manager of Shenzhen Hongde Battery
Co., Ltd., Mr. Chen is responsible for the overall operation of the Group’s
bare battery cell division. Mr. Chen accumulated years of experience in
the business of bare battery cell and battery products. He is dedicated
to developing the upstream business of the Group. Mr. Chen graduated
from Henan Normal University in 1993 with a bachelor’s degree and
obtained a master’s degree from University of Science and Technology
Beijing in 1996. Mr. Chen joined the Group in November 2011. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen held various positions with a number of
companies, such as the general manager of Zhaoging Fenghua Lithium
Battery Co., Ltd., the chief engineer of Shenzhen Bak Battery Co.,
Ltd., the general manager of Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd., the
executive deputy general manager of Shenzhen Tianmao Battery Co.,
Ltd. and the executive deputy general manager of Zhongshan Tianmao
Battery Co., Ltd..
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of SCUD Group Limited (the
“Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) presents
its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for the
financial year from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012 (“Review
Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 64.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2012 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2012 in the share capital are set out
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2012 comprised the accumulated profits, other reserves
and share premium of approximately RMB646.0 million (2011: RMB663.2
million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Huang Yan

Zhang Li

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Loke Yu
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang lJian Zhang

According to the requirements of Article 87(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Zhang
Li, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong will retire at the Company’s
annual general meeting to be held in 2013. Mr. Zhang Li, Dr. Loke Yu
and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, all being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting in 2013.

There are no service contracts for any of the Directors who are nominated
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in 2013 which
are not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the relevant interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"), which are required to
be notified to the Company and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO)) or were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or were required, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company):

Name of Director Capacity

EEHE 514

Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1)
ok NaEliEm (FiEE)

Corporate interest (Note 2)
NERER (MEE2)

This figure represents (i) 402,000,000 shares directly held
by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and (ii) 102,240,000 shares
directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, both of which
are companies with their entire issued share capital held by
Fang Jin.

Guo Quan Zeng
B

Note 1:

Note 2: These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings

Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Guo
Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2012, i.e. 1,032,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2012.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for
the primary purpose rewarding eligible participants who have contributed
to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants include directors
and employees of the Group and any directors and employees of the
Group, advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters
or service providers of the Company whom the board of directors of the
Group considers to have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme was
adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or the board of directors of the Company may at
anytime terminate the Scheme without prejudice to the options granted
during the life of the Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately
prior to such termination.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
Nil (2011: Nil). The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the time of listing, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of share
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates representing in aggregate
over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such grant or
with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting by
way of poll). Upon the grant of an option a consideration of HK$1 is
payable and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be
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determined by the Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise
price of the options shall be determined by the board of directors of
the Company in its absolute discretion but will in any event not be less
than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
an offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business
day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 preceding business days of the day of the offer of an option;
and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

All options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have expired
as at 1 January 2011.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No options have been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2012 was the Company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or convertible bonds (including bonds) of, the
Company or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than directors or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company):

Name of shareholder Capacity

IRt A 37

Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

AR ZERBR A BmERA

Right Grand HoIdings Limited Beneficial owner
ERERBRA BEmEA A

Note 1: We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2012, i.e. 1,032,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 48 to 61 of this annual report.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total remunerations of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) and a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company's independent auditors. At present, the Audit Committee
consists of three members who are Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board of the Directors appropriate candidates to
serve as Directors of the Company, to oversee the process for evaluating
the performance of the Board and to develop, recommend to the Board
and monitor nomination guidelines for the Company. At present, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members who are Dr. Loke Yu
(Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board of
Directors in determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors' service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all directors and senior management. At
present, the Remuneration Committee consists of three members who
are Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group represent
approximately 39.8% and approximately 13.7% of the Group’s total
sales of the year, respectively.

The top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represent
approximately 37.4% and approximately 12.3% of the Group’s total
purchases of the year, respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company) has equity
interests in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Company and the Group had continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which have been disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
Company are as follows:
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Name Relationship

=1 B

Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

Va2 EERARAIERRE

Guo Quan Zeng Director

PR IE =

Scud Electronics Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
RERE Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director

RERE (82) EFARAR HTeAEARREEN AR RBEE2ENB QR

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng,
FRERRAR S being common directors who has shareholding interest in this company as to 67%

and 3%, respectively.

BERERBOHABRAR  FToAERBRELERKRAEEHAF

67 % K2 3% A% HE °

D RERZAE

Scud Battery Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with
REMRES Mr. Fang Jin being common director

REREMLBRAR  HTeAERAAEENARREEEZENBRR]

Lease agreements with Scud Stock

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2006, on
20 June 2004, the Company entered into a land lease agreement (the
"Main Lease Agreement”) with Scud Stock for the purpose of leasing a
factory premises for production use until 30 June 2007. The Main Lease
Agreement was subsequently extended to 30 June 2024.
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Scud Electronics and Scud Stock entered into a separate lease agreement
(the “New Lease Agreement”) dated 15 November 2007 for the lease
of office premises for administrative use for the Group for a term of 3
years and later entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) dated 8 January 2010 terminating the New Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2010. The Renewal Agreement
is effective commencing from 1 January 2010 and its tenure ending on
31 December 2012. The annual rental under the Renewal Agreement
was RMB1,378,368 payable in cash on a monthly basis. The annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2010 was RMB4,100,000 including the
rental under the Main Lease Agreement.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock agreed to terminate
the Main Lease Agreement and the Renewal Agreement with effect from
1 January 2011 and entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 January 2011 and
ending on 31 December 2013. The annual rental was RMB5,461,866
and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 January 2011,
agreement (the “Second Lease Agreement”) for the period commencing

Scud Battery and Scud Stock entered into a lease

from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013. The annual
rental was RMB6,729,777 and payable by cash on a monthly basis.

The premises in Fuzhou under the First Lease Agreement and the
Second Lease Agreement were leased for use as a factory, office for
administration use for the Group and staff dormitory for the employees
of the Group. Further details of the First Lease Agreement and the
Second Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 3 January 2011.
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The details on annual caps and actual amount incurred for the above
continuing connected transactions for 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

First Lease Agreement F—HHEEWRZH
Second Lease Agreement  F - HEEWH
Note: As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 3 January

2011, the annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under all
Leases (as defined in the announcement) is RMB12,191,643
for each of the 3 years ending 31 December 2013, being the
sum of the annual caps under the First Lease Agreement and
the Second Lease Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out herein and in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, and have confirmed that, during
the year ended 31 December 2012, such transactions were entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Actual amount incurred Annual cap
for the year ended for the year ending
31 December 2012 31 December 2013

BE-—Z—=fF BE-Z—=
+=ZA=+—HL +-A=+—-HBL
FENERSE FENFELR
(RMB) (RMB)
(ARHTT) (AR¥IT)
5,461,866 5,461,866
6,729,777 6,729,777
(Note)

(Mt3E)
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The independent auditors of the Company have also confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions relating to the lease agreements
with Scud Stock:—

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board of the Company;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the Continuing Connected
Transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
previous announcements by the Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the transactions referred in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above, no Directors has direct or indirect material interests
in any contracts of significance subsisting during or at the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The annual report for the year containing all the relevant information
as required by Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules will be despatched to
shareholders of the Company and published on the website of the Stock
Exchange in due course.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Moore Stephens will retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as independent auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

27 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and improves
the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls practices. Set
out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the
Company during the financial year from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2012 (the “Review Period”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) (formerly the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Former Code")) effective
1 April 2012 contained in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and the Former Code for
the relevant periods in which they were in force during the Review Period,
save for the deviations referred to in the section headed “Compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules” below.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of the
board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and was
responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring the
implementation of strategies and plans to create values for shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”). Mr. Guo Quan Zeng served as the
President of the Group and was responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
the effective implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board, effectively carrying out the role of a Chief Executive Officer
("CEOQ").

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions and shareholding interests in the Company
and Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., there are no financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships between the Chairman and
the CEO.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2012, there were seven members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, three other executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"), the names of which are
shown in the table on page 55.

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board considered
that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board
and its deliberations. The term of appointment of each of the INEDs is
one year from 9 May 2012, that date of the annual general meeting
held in 2012 until the date of upcoming annual general meeting and
can be terminated by the Company or the INED with at least 3 months
written notice.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the Group
nor has any relationship with other directors. Each of the INEDs confirmed
their respective independence to the Group.

Save for the Directors’ business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company and save as disclosed above, there are
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
among members of the Board and they are independent from each
other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of the plans to enhance Shareholders’ value. Daily
operational decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
senior management. Such Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Directors. During the Review Period, the Board met 8 times
and the Directors’ attendance record is shown in the table on page 55.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group during the Review Period.
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In advance of the Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda
and other relevant information were given to all Directors. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for Board
meetings. Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes were
sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively. The
original minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of
the Company and such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of Directors’ liability.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments. With effect from 1 April 2012, the
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills including updated laws and regulations applicable
to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments thereto.
The Company has devised a training record to assist the Directors to
record the training they have undertaken.

On 14 December 2012, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Ms. Huang
Yan and Mr. Zhang Li attended a directors’ training session held by the
Company’s Hong Kong legal counsel. Dr. Loke Yu, as an independent
director of other listed issuers, has also attended various directors’
training seminars arranged by various organisations including the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Directors during the Review Period. In addition, all Directors, including Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong and Wang Jian Zhang, have confirmed that they have
received and reviewed the directors’ training materials including, amongst
others, an updated memorandum on the duties and responsibilities
of a director of a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, review of recent changes to the Corporate Governance Code
and associated Listing Rules and the review of new statutory obligations
for listed corporations under the Securities and Futures (Amendment)
Ordinance 2012 provided by the Company’s Hong Kong legal counsel.
On a continuing basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on
all matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code and
recommended best practices under the Corporate Governance Code
and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
February 2002. At present, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs
who are Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
has held 2 meetings during the year 2012 and the relevant Director’s
attendance is shown on page 55.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval,

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) To review the arrangements which the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee has carried out the
following:

(A) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Audit Committee met with the Chief Financial Officer and other

senior management of the Group to review the interim report and
annual report of the Group prior to recommending the financial
statements to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee has
considered and discussed the reports with the management, the
Group’s internal department and external auditors, with a view of
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
and also reviewed the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

(B) EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to
the Board on the reappointment of Moore Stephens Certified
Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”), as the Group's external
auditors.

(C) REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND

CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal control. It conducted
a review of the process by which the Group evaluated its control
environment and risk assessment process, and the way in which
business and control risks were managed. The Audit Committee
also discussed with the internal audit department of the Group the
work plan for their audits on the Group together with their resource
requirements to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group’s business operations.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the
year 2012 where all Remuneration Committee members attended the
meeting to discuss remuneration related matters as shown in page 55.
At present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Dr. Loke Yu, Mr.
Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies;

(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of all individual Executive Directors, senior management;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(v) to advice Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service
contract of Directors that requires Shareholders’ approval in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year include
the following:

(i) determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive
Directors;

(i) assessing performance of Executive Directors; and

(iii) approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments is set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the
year 2012 where all Nomination Committee members attended the
meeting as shown on page 55. At present, the Nomination Committee
comprises Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Dr. Loke Yu. The Nomination
Committee selects and recommends appropriate candidates based on
the candidates’ prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and the senior management of the Group. The
main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

(i)  to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility; and

(iv) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director

and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general
meetings held during the Review Period.
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H & 5 i
Meetings attended/held in 2012
R-B-ZFWHE/ETHEE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
2012 AGM
—E-C-F
Bz EVEEY RAZE® FHEEE RRBFAE

Board Committee Committee Committee

Number of meetings held during R eI IR R1TH

the Review Period 2%HA 8 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors: BTES
Fang Jin kS 8/8 N/AZ 5 3 n n n
Guo Quan Zeng PRI 8/8 N/ATE R N/ATE N/ATN3E 0/1
Huang Yan ¢ 7/8 N/AZ 3 R N/AZ i R N/A i 0/1
Zhang Li ER 88  NATEE  NATEA  NATER 01
Independent Non-executive Directors: VEHTES:
Loke Yu BEE 6/8 212 1/1 17 1/1
Wang Jing Zhong FaA 6/8 212 ”n Al 0/1
Wang Jian Zhang s 6/8 212 N/AZ 33 A N/AZT 32 A 0/1

GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regularly basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance introduced by The Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENCE INFORMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his/her independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the Review Period, the Board formalised the
inclusion of the following corporate governance duties into the terms
of reference of the Board.

R
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(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) toreview the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Review Period, the Board also revised the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Board also devised a Shareholders’ communication policy as more
particularly described in the section headed “Shareholder and Investor
Relations” of this Corporate Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in the former Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules effective prior to 1 April 2012, and the new Corporate Governance
Code set out in the revised Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, effective
since 1 April 2012 throughout the corresponding effective periods.

Under the revised code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting and invite the chairmen of audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In the annual general meeting held on 9 May 2012 (“2012
AGM"), Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang,
all being independent non-executive directors and members of Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
(save for Mr. Wang Jian Zhang who is a member of the Audit Committee
only), were invited to attend the 2012 AGM to answer any question
from the shareholders concerning the Company’s corporate governance.
As provided for in the revised code provision A.6.7, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
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general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang were unable to attend the 2012
AGM because of the prior business commitments.

To achieve high corporate governance standards and enhance corporate
performance and accountability, the Company has established an internal
audit department to ensure the Group maintains a sound and effective
system of internal controls. The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the
Group's objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it also
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2012.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditors, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the Review Period, the Group was required to
pay approximately RMB 1,220,000 to Moore Stephens and approximately
RMB534,000 to the PRC auditors for their audit services. The Group was
also required to pay approximately RMB244,000 to Moore Stephens for
their non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and their responsibilities for the accounts and
the reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out on pages
62 to 63 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA), during the Review Period, took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out
the principles of the Company in relation to its communication with
the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders are
provided with access to information about the Company in order to
enable to Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed matter and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, press releases, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company's Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite information
of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make enquiry in respect of the Company in
writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via
the numbers and email address provided on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting. To be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have been
dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the Group
but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all parties so
as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious collaboration
in the long run.

1. INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication
and interaction with investors, and continued to improve
communication channels with shareholders and investors, so as to
enhance governance transparency. The Group’s management will
regularly meet with investors, and proactively announce the latest
information and business development plans. During the Review
Period, we have held individual investors’ meetings and telephone
conferences with various institutional investors and fund managers.
Furthermore, the Group has been in strict compliance with listing
requirements; to provide market participants and regulators with
timely, accurate, complete and reliable information of the Group,
so that investors may make the best decision.

2. CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety issues of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and have implemented strict
quality control like 1SO so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests including
crash, high-temperature, dampen and long-period recharging on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by relevant government authorities.

3. EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for fire
prevention. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire exercises,
increased investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so
as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention equipments and
facilities.
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REBWE

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), fix problems in a timely manner, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for
fire prevention;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard
prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire exercises every year and
conduct general safety checks and fire exercises on such
days;

(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner;

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables;

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
to on-job training for its staff. The Group kicked off a comprehensive
talent training programme, which is tied to the establishment of
its own skill training institute. Talents will be cultivated at the
skill institute and available in the pipeline to resolve the labour
shortage issue faced by the industry participants. After a period of
training, the Group will convey labour resources directly to various
departments, which will shorten the time of staff replacement and
reduce labour cost. Automated production will also be implemented
at different phases. Moreover, in the training process, students can
comprehend the practical operation issues arising from the course
of production, which will effectively enhance production efficiencies
and qualities. The Group will enlist talents from the society at large
and select the management and technical experts that it needs
through professional and rigorous training processes. At the same
time, this will also bring to the society a new generation of talents
and allow the Company to fulfil its social responsibilities and deliver
contributions to the society.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group has been promoting and exercising a fair and non-
discriminative employment policy. Employees are employed on
contract basis and employment contracts were signed based on
a fair and voluntary principle, with requirements with regard to
contract term, scope of work, work remuneration, social insurance,
and working hour, among others. The rights and obligations
of the employer and employee are defined clearly by legal
representation.

We also strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to national social insurance to set up insurance scheme for
basic aged caring, medical, injuries at work, unemployment and
birth-giving for employees and cover the various insurance expenses.
Meanwhile, to further protect the interests of individual employees,
the Company registered a commercial accident insurance scheme
for all employees. The Group implemented the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and
established a labor union. We hold an employees’ meeting every
two weeks, in support of construction and development of a
harmonious and stable employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always emphasised
in supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Despite small
amount of waste generated during the packaging process, it is
sorted by the Group and the recyclable portions are delivered to
qualified recycling plants for treatment.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 155, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

b

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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e W R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —F— 4+ - A=+—HILF)E

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE ARETT AREEF T

Turnover EEE 4 1,821,620 1,653,011
Cost of sales HERAR (1,527,190) (1,362,359)
Gross profit EF 294,430 290,652
Other revenue EH bl 5 11,317 12,793
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko A (59,516) (57,487)
Administrative expenses TR S (288,599) (164,861)
Loss on refund EmEEL 24 (151,743) -
Other operating expenses HAh a2 h (7,142) (3,693)
(Loss)/Profit from operations B (FE),ERN 6 (201,253) 77,404
Finance costs & A 9 (13,803) (10,181)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BB (EE) BRI (215,056) 67,223
Taxation E 10 22,450 (12,308)
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE(FE),EF (192,606) 54,915
Attributable to: T 5 AL :

Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFAA (162,815) 59,492

Non-controlling interests FEFE MR A (29,791) (4,577)

(192,606) 54,915

Dividends BRE 11 - 16,733
(Loss)/Earnings per share BR(EE), BT

— basic (RMB cents) —EAR(ARES) 12 (15.78) 5.76

- diluted (RMB cents) —BEARED) 12 (15.78) 5.76
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
(Loss)/Profit for the year AFEE(FR), BT (192,606) 54,915
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEHMEEBA (EE)
for the year
Exchange differences arising TEINH B A B 2 B R R
on translation of the financial EITHEREE ZER 58
statements of foreign subsidiaries 241 (3,780)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEEZME(EIE), WAL
for the year (192,365) 51,135
Total comprehensive (loss)/income THALTEEZE(EE), WALLE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFAA (162,565) 53,388
Non-controlling interests FEPR I 1 A (29,800) (2,253)
(192,365) 51,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MEARR R

At 31 December 2012 R =ZF——#+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
b= AR®ET T ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LES =N ] 13 357,854 399,041
Intangible assets BmIZAE 14 44,893 120,512
Deferred tax assets BEFTBEE 15 37,551 1,848
440,298 521,401
Current assets REBEE
Due from a related party FEW B RAE A 5018 16 2,028 1,703
Inventories FE 17 460,025 347,773
Trade and notes receivables FEUE 5508 K R IR i 18 632,659 511,165
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE - Ee2k
receivables E fth FEU RIB 19 153,740 114,800
Current tax recoverable A Y [ BN EARR T 1,917 2,374
Pledged bank deposits BIEIRIRITIE R 20 143,684 123,639
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBREIRS 21 278,749 375,326
1,672,802 1,476,780
Current liabilities HBAE
Due to a related party A EEANTFIE 22 - 6
Trade and notes payables ERNE S 7IERENEE 23 465,378 383,528
Provision for refund EE Gh O 24 97,071 -
Provision for warranty EmREEES 25 3,074 3,623
Other payables, receipts in HAbfERTFRIA - TBUGRIA
advance and accrued charges RIEET & A 26 80,021 109,188
Current tax payable FEENEATE I8 10,990 3,022
Bank loans — current portion RITER - R 27 289,390 127,275
945,924 626,642
Net current assets MEEEFE 726,878 850,138
Total assets less current liabilities BREERREBDAEE 1,167,176 1,371,539
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At 31 December 2012 R =ZE——#+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—=F —T——%
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ks AR¥T AREFT
Capital and reserves EXRREE
Share capital [N 28 103,014 103,014
Reserves i 999,881 1,130,020
Equity attributable to equity AARERFEA
holders of the Company FEib R 1,102,895 1,233,034
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI R 60,538 114,646
Total equity R 1,163,433 1,347,680
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans — non-current portion HRITER—IEREE S 27 423 20,539
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIERE 15 3,320 3,320
3,743 23,859
Total equity and non-current BERZRIERDAR
liabilities 1,167,176 1,371,539
FANG JIN GUO QUAN ZENG
B& BRIT
Director Director
EF EF
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RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —F— 4+ - A=+—HILF)E

Attributable
to equity
Statutory  Enterprise holders Non-
Share Share Capital reserve  expansion  Translation  Accumulated ofthe  controlling
capital  premium reserve fund fund reserve profits ~ Company interests Total
KAARE
HE -4 BEA B

Bx  RHEE  RABR 0RE  EREE  ENEE  ThE REH i it
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO
ARRTT ARBTR ARETRL ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2011 R-F--%-B-A 103,014 577,15 186,215 84,685 43,181 (36883) 22319 1,179,646 106,867 1286513
Exchange differences arising on BHEAT

translation of foreign subsidiaries ETARELNENZR - - - - - (6,104) - (6,104) 234 (3780)
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - - - 59,492 59,492 (s5m) 54915

Total comprehensive incomel(ogs) FERREAL/(5E)

for the year % - - - - - (6,104) 59,492 53,388 (2293 51,135
Appropriations Iy - - - 9,999 4,952 - (14,951) - - -
Capital contributions to subsidiaries FEHERRNELALE

by non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 440 440
Non-controllng interest arsing from B -TEHER AR

acquisition of a subsidiary W ER - - - - - - - - 9592 9,592
At 31 December 2011 RZF--£+ZB=1-H 103,014 ST7,115 186,215 94,684 48133 (42987) 266860 1233034 114,646 1,347,680
Exchange differences arising on BT

translation of foreign subsidiaries ETREEENEREE - - - - - 250 - 250 © W
Lo for the year REEER - - - - - - (681 (162815) (9791 (192606)
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) REERENN/ (BR)

for the year g - - - - - 250 (162,815 (162,565  (29.800)  (192,365)
Appropriations Al - - - 2,009 13 - (2,982) - - -
Dividends paid for 2011 Bi-E—FkE - - - - - - (16,839) (16,839) - (16,839)
Capitel contributions to a subsidlary ~ FiEsIERR-FENBAAILE

by non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 2,400 2400
Acquisiton of non-controling WE-ERBLRR

interests of & subsidiary H3E) \*ﬂ?éﬁﬁ - - - - - -5 50263 (371323) 12,960
Partial disposal of subsidiaries HEFHHERTRER - - - - - - (1018 (1,018 10615 9,597

At 31 December 2012 R=%-ZEtZf=t-8 103014 577115 186215 96,693 49,106 (42,731) 133489 1,102,895 60,538 1,163,433
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Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and the
Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, these
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, namely
a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund which are
non-distributable. Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”),
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”), Chaolitong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chaolitong
Technology”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Hongde”),
Scud (Guangzhou) Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Guangzhou”),
Scud (Beijing) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Beijing”), Fujian Chaolitong
Battery Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Chaolitong”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co.,
Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde"”), Fuzhou Thousand Island Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Thousand Island”) and Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Nalon”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after taxation as reported in the
PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund until the
balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they
are also required to make appropriation from their respective profit
after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements to
the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their respective
boards of directors. The statutory reserve fund may be used to make
up prior year losses incurred and, with the approval from the relevant
government authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production
of the PRC Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the
approval by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to
increase capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

FREEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

BREEFREARBIRECEZPEARLNEA
(T E ) ERREREAR B R ENEB AR A
BERAA ZEPEKNE QR AR MBAE R
- AEEATEEREXEBERES(BHA/TA SRR
)  REBR(BR)ETARAR(RERET])
REBRECERAR(REREM]) - REBRET
CRIDBRARDRIIFRER )  RIITEDBR
RERAR(BABERR]D  RINTBEELER
RERDFRIERE D - BMRERBIBEREMAR R A
(TEMRER]) REBRQE)EFHERAFNE
RRER])  BREBENBELAERAR(EEED
Bl REMBEELARAFA(R=BED B
MTEEFAERARTERBMTE D FRYITEAGEE
AERAB(NRIAED (REAIFEMEAR D)
BARPEDEEM MR R BE SN E R
VREZERES BEFRAEHEESEMRA
50% -

REFERBARZESEZMAR - L EARAR
TEVEEMBRRAEBMIGRRGEN - REEB
MEFTGREZLE  BRECRERES - AT
RECEBRBUTHELER - ATRRBEEAF
EHERzEE RARNENTERBRARZEAR
WmgMAE - CEZRESKEWBUTHRELE
& ATAEENTEHBARZER -

AEBZENBERRARF D BITRG 2 EHHEH
WEMB ARz BEWEREEN EREAERGEAR
Al Emz SEEAMARBMBAREZZHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —F— 4+ - A=+—HILF)E

2012 2011
—E2--% —T——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHBRETE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAT(E518) /% F (215,056) 67,223
Adjustments for: HEIEE :
Interest income FEUWA (3,817) (3,701)
Finance costs BERA 13,803 10,181
Impairment loss recognised HEPEERICREEE
on intangible assets 68,437 21,066
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESRE 7,782 10,605
Depreciation and amortisation: WEREH:
— Property, plant and equipment W% BERERE 68,098 62,121
— Sales counter decoration —EREEEE 7,256 9,304
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BERE
plant and equipment EEBRE 5813 1,061
Impairment loss recognised on trade EREWE 538 R EWER -
and notes receivables, prepayments, BNHIR - Ze REMEKE
deposits and other receivables BRARERSE 28,865 4,057
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HREWE SFIERERER
on trade and notes receivables, BRRIE - Ze REMEKHE
prepayments, deposits and R R EEREER
other receivables (945) (772)
Write down of inventories to MRFEE]EEFE
net realisable value 10,945 -
Write off of inventories recognised BEFERRANY
as an expense 8,321 -
Negative goodwill recognised as income HRABANEEE = (1,382)
Release of provision for warranty RoERRBEEES (549) (275)
Loss on refund EmEiELR 151,743 -
Operating profit before changes *‘Jr @é ZHEIH
in working capital i Fl 150,696 179,488
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from a fEl BB AT RIBOEM),HL
related party (325) 4,185
Increase in inventories FEEN (186,190) (87,534)
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEIE 5 FE R W R A0 (147,713) (89,327)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits T FIE « &84k E YR
and other receivables (gm),/ wd (40,641) 127,644
Increase in trade and notes payables [ERE SFIERERZEILM 81,850 12,521
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, E{‘@ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ FEWHIER
receipts in advance and accrued charges fEstEACR) /B (16,205) 10,613
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (AR),/ RESEEBORS (158,528) 157,590
Interest paid ERFIE (13,803) (10,181)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BHTECEMEH (4,828) (11,027)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR),/ RERETHNRLZE
operating activities (177,159) 136,382
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2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
HisE AR¥T R ARBFT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNRERE
Interest received BUF B 3,817 3,701
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRIRERT T g M (20,045) (26,663)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash g NG
acquired HGREAR S 29 - (18,102)
Payments for sales counter decoration HEEEEERE (3,793) (7,667)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  EBEEWE - BERk&E (43,090) (82,922)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BABVEEFR (600) (751)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BE REE
plant and equipment F SR 6,903 190
Net cash used in investing activities ARBEEENERSFE (56,808) (132,214)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRESRE
Dividends paid BIRE (16,839) -
Bank loans raised EERITER 344,117 143,823
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (202,118) (82,439)
Repayment to a related party MEBEATER (6) (4,122)
Capital contributions to a subsidiary EEHERRMEARLE
by non-controlling interests 2,400 440
Acquisition of non-controlling W BB B A A
interests of a subsidiary F I | R 30 2) -
Partial disposal of subsidiaries HEBOHBAAER 30 9,597 -
Net cash generated from financing REMETHNERSFE
activities 137,149 57,702
(Decrease)/increase in cash ReRBLEEER
and cash equivalents OR),/$m (96,818) 61,870
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHReRREEEER
beginning of year 375,326 317,234
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHHFE 241 (3,778)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRRELRBRESEEER 278,749 375,326
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERREEB/ERDN
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRSE 21 278,749 375,326
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GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock
Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebook computers, digital cameras and other electronic
appliances, while also engaging in manufacture and sale of high-
end lithium bare battery cells for mobile phones.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 (the “Financial Statements”) have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. In addition, the Financial
Statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The principal accounting policies and
methods of computation used in the preparation of the Financial
Statements are consistent with those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, except
for the adoption of the new and revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as explained in Note 3 below.

—RER
REBEERERAFT( AT DR ZZEERF
tRAZtHERESHSHMKIAERE Y £
MARLAR  EROR_ZEZTNF+_A=+
—BEBBBAERSIMEBERAR(TBRA])E
fR_ETT °

HEMBHRRNALARBRNDEEEARE(A
REDZ5 -

RRABNEBERBIREZR - MEKBAR
TBRERUBPER  FLAEN - BIHMA
BEEMEFRARAAZ —AREEHENE
AR EEMEE  TESRUBHEHEE
RzEmBE R EERBEE -

M HRRENEE

BE_Z-——_F+_A=+t—HILFENES
B RER ([ IREK ) THIRIRE 2 A E ) 47
S o MBHMRBIEBZAES TR
(I E#R A ) R B &R BHESI (BB A G232
B)RERERWE - MEMBBREMBNE
BREABRREFENEDEBE T ——F 1+
“A=ZtT - BUEFENGAMBREMRAE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB") and Interpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (the “IFRIC”) of the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards
for the Financial Statements which are effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2012. Except in
certain cases, giving rise to the new and revised accounting
policies and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new
interpretations and amendments has had no effect on the
Financial Statements.

IAS 12 Amendment Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

IFRS 1 Amendment Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

IFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the revised IFRSs had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current
or prior accounting periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e M BRI

e —Ft-A=+-ALEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

74

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the directors of the Company to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group's critical accounting policies
and estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:

i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, and will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation charges in future periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to any industry downturn. The
directors reassess the estimations at the end of each
reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the
current market condition. The directors reassess the
allowance at the end of the reporting period.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information
may differ from future claims. Factors that could impact
the estimated claim information include the success of
the Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well
as parts and labour costs.

Provision for refund

The Group implemented a refund policy whereby the
Group refunded its distributors for the unmarketable
battery products since the fourth quarter of 2012. The
refund plan is expected to be completed in the first
half of 2013. The directors estimate the provision for
refund based on estimated quantity, agreed price and
net realisable value of the refunded products. Where
the actual refunded quantity is more than estimated, a
provision may arise. Details of the provision for refund
are set out in Note 24.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —
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iv)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Vi)

Vii)

viii)

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment
loss may arise. Details of the impairment testing are
provided in Note 14.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, the directors estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

viii) Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB96,119,000 (2011: RMB29,846,000).
These losses relate to subsidiaries that have a history of
losses and may not be used to offset taxable income
elsewhere in the Group. These subsidiaries have no
temporary taxable differences which could partly support
the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no
tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, loss would decrease by approximately
RMB24,030,000 (2011: profits increase by approximately
RMB7,462,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note
15.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of
the related assets (i.e. reclassified to the consolidated income
statement or transferred directly to retained earnings). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree's share-based payment transactions
with share-based payment transactions of the Group
are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
periods and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting periods
in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement where such treatment would be appropriate
if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the
asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated income statement in the period in which
it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated income statement in the period
in which it arises.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Details are set out in Note 13.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Where the Group acquires leasehold land held for own use
under a finance lease, the prepaid cost representing the fair
value of the leasehold land, is included in property, plant and
equipment, together with the related leasehold property. Both
these leasehold land and property are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
(an “ltem"”) comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the Item to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the Item has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the Item, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the Item.

When, in the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment are below their carrying
amounts, provisions are made to write down the carrying
amounts of such assets to their recoverable amounts (see
also Note 3g) above).

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an Item recognised
in the consolidated income statement is the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant Item, and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets on
the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic
useful lives of the individual assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value, if any, at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings held for own use Over the
under finance leases lease term
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
on these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals,
if any, are charged to the consolidated income statement
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Distribution network 10 years
Domain names 3 years
Employee contracts 2.57 years
Non-compete agreements 2 years
Software 3-5 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

3. FEGTEER®

BYWREBVEE

BYKBREBEECRAFHNELEE
To VAR AR R 5t 35 M AR 7] REDRUE B 1B
SIRR(INE) - BAERBEERBFMNELE
BB 3H TR B AR B E M ET A R AR A
e Z—HEHEFERNEAFHNETY
BERKAR B & ZREBEIIR -

7 EHAEER 104
54 36
EEEH 2574
TERF s 24
EALE 3-5%F

BUHER B EEMEEMNBR HREE
FIERBEFELRZEENREEZRG
B URZBEEBUHERERGS G R

=7
o ©

B9 0% B AT A e S FE L B A AR R
RER -

A (HAEEBEMFAEERE)MHRA

MEENELEE SEMETEEBNAT
PRA IR T T HERR

o TEREZEILEEIALEREME AT
BERM ERBRITI

LB KRB EELERRHEDN

w m

[

o BHENERIHMEXENEE

o ETARS IR £ TR R AR
Flas -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
TREREE TR =
ANNUAL REPORT 4 %Rk 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include amount due from
a related party, trade and notes receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash, which are classified and accounted for as loans
and receivables. Financial assets are recognised on the trade
date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment losses.
Any changes in their value are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Significant financial difficulties of debtors,
such as the probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivables are
impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at the
end of each reporting period whether or not there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Impairment loss on loans and receivables is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all the amounts due to it in accordance with
the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group financial liabilities include bank loans, trade and
notes payables, other payables and accrued charges. Financial
liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transactions costs incurred and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the consolidated income
statement.
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The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reporting period. All differences are taken to consolidated
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Chinese Renminbi. As at the end of
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period, and
their income and expense items are translated into Chinese
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recorded in
other comprehensive income and the cumulative balance is
included in translation reserve in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in exchange reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Chinese Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Chinese Renminbi at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
that have been audited or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting period. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the consolidated income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as follows:

i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, which means that all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

iii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing services
are provided.

Government grants in the form of incentive payments are

recognised as income and reported separately as “other

income” when the government's approval of grant is

unconditional.

Government grants related to new products research costs

are recognised in the consolidated income statement over the

period necessary to match them with the related costs and

deducted in reporting the related expenses.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

For the year ended 31
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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ii)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and contributions to the retirement schemes
operated by the relevant authorities for employees of the
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are
recognised as an expense in the consolidated income
statement as incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense.

iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing
costs are charged to the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from
banks repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

() is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@ The entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(@ A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statements of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board
that makes strategic decisions.

3. FEGTHEER®

(i) WMBATER  AZEREAKER

E3ped

(a)

HERRAEEER—EEY
MEAT -
F-EEAS-ERIBEAD
ARAEAT RAB—EBR
FBEEAFNE 2 BEAR
HABDH -

EM@EMBEALTHZERSA
EXFENIBEZER(HZE
BERANEEBTBRERKS -

EEHIR KRR B NP BHREAD LR
REmA MR —AREGN  BEZFER
BERRNERAE EHERLE - ZER
BERRILENREIRER @ AIBAAEME -

KEDE

PR E DA RRE B2ERKE

FERENAIIRER T A B EHRE
MEEFRIBLERRE  HBEDR
BRI APz 2 EDAMRR -



SCUD GROUPRP LIMITED
TREBREE TR =
ANNUAL REPORT 4 %Rk 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision makers in order to allocate resources
to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is currently engaged in the business of the Group’s
own brands “SCUDFRFERR" brand and “Chaolitongi /738"
brand (together as “Own-brand business”), original equipment
manufacturing (“OEM business”) as well as bare battery cells
("Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group's reportable segments are set out below:

Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of “SCUD#
FEBR” brand and “Chaolitongi8 /138" brand rechargeable
battery packs, chargers, portable power supply kits, bluetooth
headsets and related accessories for mobile phones, notebook
computers, digital cameras and other electronic appliances.

OEM business — Manufacture and sale of rechargeable battery
packs, chargers and related accessories for mobile phones
for branded mobile phone manufacturers within and outside
China by way of OEM.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of bare
battery cells for mobile phones and portable power supply

kits.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress.

RE R AR MR
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &XZERoIBER 2)

(Continued)
Segment information about these businesses are presented BAZSEBNDIERZ25IT ¢
as follows:
Segment revenue and results DEB R A
Group A58
2012 2011
B -
Own-brand OEM  Bare battery Own-brand OEM  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total business business  cell business Others Total
BERIEER  OEMEE  EXEE Hfy i EEREEE OMER  EUER Ef et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR AR%TR ARMTR AR%TR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Total Turnover BEsE 722,285 820,356 385,239 5384 1,933,264 915,289 623,545 196,151 1439 1,736,424
Less: Internal sales H RPHE - - (111,644) - (111,644) - - (83,413) - (83,413)
Turnover BEE 722,285 820,356 273,595 5384 1,821,620 915,289 623,545 112,738 1,439 1,653,011
Segment results PEEE (217,624) 51,635 7,986 (1,179) (159,182) 47,799 17,227 3,579 281 68,886
Unallocated income FARMA 966 2,598
Unallocated expenses ~ AAEHX (31,781) (9,359)
Finance costs BERK (3,155) (3,060)
(Loss)/profit before BHa(EE)
taxation /A (193,152) 59,065
Taxation i) 546 (4,150)
(Loss)profit for rEE (BE)
the year Va:l (192,606) 54,915
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &XZERoIBER 2)
(Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as EHAZSEBNDBERZINET (&)
follows: (Continued)

Assets and liabilities BEREBE
Group 758
2012 2011
~B-Cf T——F
Own-brand OEM  Bare battery Own-brand OEM  Bare battery
business business  cell business Total business business  cell business Total
BEmEESR OEME# eSS @t BAmEER OEMETS BOEH o

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR ARRTR  AREBTT  ARETRL  ARETR  ARETR

Segment assets AHEE 710,292 729,363 371,604 1,811,259 795,068 584,399 276,090 1,655,557

Unallocated corporate assets  KAEATEE

- Pledged bank deposits -BEERIER 45,430 15,865
- Bank balances and cash ~ —F{TEBLES 222,842 298,025
- Others —Efh 33,569 28,734
Consolidated total assets ~ FABAE 2,113,100 1,998,181
Segment liabilites AHEE 233,523 373,624 227,902 835,049 202,489 227,260 171,698 601,447
Unallocated corporate liabilities /A& A& & 114,618 49,054
Consolidated total liabilities A& AE 949,667 650,501
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BXENRIHER &

(Continued)
Group A£M
2012 2011
St 3%
Own-brand OEM  Bare battery Own-brand OEM  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total business business cell business Others Total
BERMER  OEMER  EUER 0 & BEREEE  OMER  EUER it it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR AREFr ARETT ARETR
Additions to property, ~ AEWE - R
plant and equipment e 4,974 9,791 28,068 251 43,090 31,070 24,480 33,489 4,077 93,116
Additions to sales TEEREERE
counter decoration (BERAENZ
(included in leasehold ~ EEER)
improvements) 3,793 - - - 3,793 7667 - - - 7667
Additions to intangible  FEEFAE
assets 53 - - 547 600 46 - 60 645 751
Depreciation of property, #1% * B K
plant and equipment RENE 33,124 24,316 9,373 1,285 68,098 31,878 22,747 6,149 1,347 62,121
Amortisation of sales  SEEEEEHH
counter decoration (BEREENE
(included in leasehold £ BHR)
improvements) 7,256 - - - 7,256 9,304 - - - 9,304
Amortisation of BAEEH
intangble assets (Note) (%) 6,539 - 5 1191 7782 9,789 - 37 779 10,605
Impairment loss on BYEENRE
intangible assets (Note) ~ &5%8 (Hiz) 68,437 - - - 68,437 21,066 - - - 21,066
Note: Impairment loss/amortisation of intangible assets Mzt : AWEBHNBEENEREEN

arising from the acquisition of Chaolitong (see also

Note 14 below for details).
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The Group’s turnover from its major products were as

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

4, EXFRIBER @

T——F+-A=+—HIFE

AEBETEEMNWEXBNT

follows:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-=F —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Own-brand business — SCUD brand: Qﬁ&#ﬁ%ﬁ% RERRME
Mobile phone battery BEE; 306,605 626,549
Portable power supply kits BEER 100,856 16,584
Chargers FTEER 7,032 6,084
Bluetooth headsets EETFH K 27,185 14,384
Others Hitp 4,383 10,184
446,061 673,785
Own-brand business — Chaolitong brand: & *ﬁ_u%ﬁi‘.'i%ﬁ% HBhBmE
Mobile phone battery BEE 224,406 182,954
Portable power supply kits BEEFL 24,173 -
Chargers TEE 27,367 50,354
Others HAtb 278 8,196
276,224 241,504
Own-brand business BEmEER 722,285 915,289
OEM business: OEMET :
Mobile phone battery '&@JEE 783,738 570,295
Notebook computer battery E$EEH%EE 16,874 29,256
Others B \1‘@ 19,744 23,994
OEM business OEME#% 820,356 623,545
Bare battery cell business: BREL
Bare lithium battery cells $EEL 273,595 112,738
Others Hitp 5,384 1,439
1,821,620 1,653,011
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BXZERoIPER 2

(Continued)
e) Geographical information e) HBEEFR
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as analysis AREWEZIZBRTIZE D HAEE
of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant segment’s BRERFESMARAEEESED FH
assets and additions to property, plant and equipment and HEEERRENR - BMEREEHEREY
intangible assets by geographical market have not been BENEREESN  REAA/RAIARF
presented as they are substantially generated from or situated BESHMNTE -
in the PRC.
5. OTHER REVENUE 5. Hfblz=
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-CfF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Interest income AMESKA 3,817 3,701
Foreign exchange gain b 5 Yz - 5,168
Processing income ITUA 2,169 849
Negative goodwill recognised ERRBBAZ BEEE
as income - 1,382
Sundry income E U A 5,331 1,693
11,317 12,793
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(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 6. K& (EHE) RF
(Loss)/profit from operations is arrived at after charging/ K (BR),SEREkk, (GEA)ATIER ¢
(crediting):
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-—=F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETIT
Auditors’ remuneration: ZELRD BN &
— current year provision —RNEFEEE 1,998 1,692
— prior year underprovision/ —BEFERETRCBERE)
(overprovision) 11 (265)
Depreciation of property, plant W - BB RERENITE
and equipment (including (BT I KB AH
depreciation recorded in HITE
research and development AR#17,334,0007T
costs of RMB17,334,000 (ZZ—%:
(2011: RMB14,368,000)) AR #14,368,0007T)) 68,098 62,121
Amortisation: e
— sales counter decoration —EMEEmEE
(included in leasehold (BEREEYFEEEBIER)
improvements) 7,256 9,304
— intangible assets —mEE 7,782 10,605
Impairment loss recognised on TEfEWE 55718 R EW R -
trade and notes receivables, TERRIE - e REAMmER
prepayments, deposits and HIBMERABEEE
other receivables 28,865 4,057
Reversal of impairment loss EREKE 558 R EREE
recognised on trade and notes TEFRIA - e REA IR
receivables, prepayments, SRIBMERAREE B R
deposits and other receivables (945) (772)
Write down of inventories MoR T E 2] #55 5 E
to net realisable value 10,945 -
Write off of inventories WEFEERARX
recognised as an expenses 8,321 -
Loss on disposals of property, HEWME - BRE R&E
plant and equipment EEBE 5,813 1,061
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERAITHWFERA
as expenses 1,527,190 1,362,359
Operating lease rentals: KEASE
— office premises —REYIE 26,831 24,550
Impairment loss recognised on B EEWROBERE
intangible assets 68,437 21,066
Negative goodwill recognised WRABAHEHE
as income - (1,382)
Research and development costs  FF7E M Fa 3 Ak 2 72,271 49,174
Staff costs (Note 7) 8 TARARMIET7) 176,717 134,629
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)  [EX &SI,/ (Uzs ) FHE 245 (5,168)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 % —F— 4+ - A=+—HILFE

7. STAFF COSTS 7. BIEA
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF ZE——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 8)  ZE % (FEs) 988 982
Other staff costs Hab 8 Tk A 182,877 136,526
Retirement benefits scheme RIRRRAET MR
contributions 13,728 9,197
Less: Staff costs included in R T AR KRB
research and development Ef= NN
costs (20,876) (12,076)

176,717 134,629

8. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 8. EER{EEME

a) The information disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the a) WBEBBQITEMNFI6EAREENER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: LU
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——fF —E=——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBETT

Fees we 283 286
Salaries e 672 672
Other emoluments: Hith & -
Retirement benefits RIRE T &
scheme contributions R 33 24
988 982
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

b)  Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors are

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+_-A=+—HILFE

8. EEREEME

b) ARERESEINHNMEHBET

as follows:
2012 2011
—E--F —F——F

Retirement Retirement

benefits benefits
scheme Total scheme Total
Salaries Fees contributions emoluments Salaries Fees contributions  emoluments

BARER RIRER
e we  GEER fame Hé we AR 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Fang Jin bk - - I l - - 6 6
Guo Quan Zeng Pig 500 - 12 512 500 - 6 506
Huang Yan BR 76 - 83 76 - 6 82
Zhang Li G 96 - 7 103 96 - 6 102
Loke Yu KB - 163 - 163 - 166 - 166
Wang Jing Zhong ~ THA - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60
Wang JianZhang ~ TEZ - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60
Total &t 672 283 33 988 672 286 2 982

During both years, none of the director has received any bonus
payments paid by the Group.

R EAMEFE - $EE SR A S EKE
(B CIE A
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8.

106

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

¢)  The five highest paid individuals include two directors for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: two), details of whose
emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2011: three non-
director) highest paid individuals are as follows:

8. EEREEME »

Q

BE_T _F+_A=+—RHLEFE"
hemEHFHALEEME(ZF——F:
MB)EE  REZMEFIEHR L -

HEBp=H(ZF——F: ZHFEF)ER
FRALTHMEMT

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBETT

Salaries, bonus, allowance e e EAR
and other benefits EmEF 2,066 1,932
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFET S
contributions R 32 30
2,098 1,962

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest paid

EBRREHMFFEZALHOMEN FAT
EE

individuals are within the following bands: -
Group
REME
2012 2011
—E——fF ZE——fF
Nil to RMB810,700 T AR¥810,7007C
(equivalent to Nil to (%£RZ%1,000,000/%87T)
HKD1,000,000) 2 2
RMB810,701 to RMB1,621,400 AR¥810,701TE AKK1,621,4007T
(equivalent to HKD1,000,001 (%5[71,000,001# 722,000,000/ L)
to HKD2,000,000) 1 1




DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals (including both directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

REMBMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE - ZF——4#+-A=+—HIFFE

8. EENEEME #)

d) RMEFER AEEHERNREERSH
AL (BRESFIER) XNERAME
TE RIS INA RS B R ANA A& H B 1) 22
B RAREBMUMFEE - RMEFEA -

directors has waived any emoluments during both years. WERBEREEMME -
FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
Group
AEME
2012 2011
—E——F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFTT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIE A B 11,747 8,944
Interest on discounted notes FEUR AR IR IR AT B
receivable 1,966 1,237
Other finance costs H g & A AR 90 -
13,803 10,181
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10.

108

TAXATION

No provision for taxation has been made by the Company as it is
not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other jurisdictions save
for the PRC where it conducts its principal business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong Kong
during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
incurred tax losses during the year.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate of
taxation applicable for the period.

Scud Electronics and Scud Battery are foreign investment enterprises
located in Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC. Scud
Shenzhen, Chaolitong Technology and Shenzhen Hongde are foreign
investment enterprises located in Shenzhen, PRC. Both Mawei
District and Shenzhen are designated as an Economic Development
Zone. Accordingly, Scud Electronics, Scud Battery, Scud Shenzhen,
Chaolitong Technology and Shenzhen Hongde were subject to an
income tax rate of 15% before 2008.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress promulgated the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
("the new Enterprise Tax Law"), which took effect on 1 January
2008. As a result of the new Enterprise Tax Law, the statutory income
tax rate for enterprises in the PRC has been reduced from 33%
t0 25%. On 6 and 26 December 2007, the State Council released
the Detailed Rules and Regulations for the Implementation of PRC
Enterprises Tax Law (“Implementation Rules”) and Guo Fa [2007]
No. 39 Notice on Carrying out the Transitional Preferential Policies
concerning Corporate Income Tax (“Circular 39"), respectively.

10. $i18

HRARRBAGMREREREMAEER
MRIE  BGEAEE T EERLERAENT
BIR)IRIRSN - AN AR EAE B AL IARAE o

HREMFAREENEMRIFRBBEL -
TRIERBEE - MAAEREE LML E
REHRFRSSRIBER - S EREE
FSTBE LA -

REMEMMSREEIREN B AR E AR
AR BINIA A SR AR ERUAMAEL ©

REBEFMREBEMZMLNTEEEER
MHmERERNINERE - FINRER  BHE
BHERORIIB R AR BRI SN E B % -
FREERRIIDEETERQBERER - Fit
REBRET REBRED  FINRER  BH
BRERYBEE_ZTNFZAERI5%
RIS TR -

RZZZT+F=A+ B F+EZBEARRK
RABERRZEEFRABPRECEMER
FY([FEERED TR N\F—A—H
AR - IRIBOETE - PESENEEM
BRHEECA33%FME255%  R_TTLF+
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10. TAXATION (Continued)

The new Enterprise Tax Law, its Implementation Rules and Circular
39 provide a 5-year transitional period from 1 January 2008 for
those entitles which were established before 16 March 2007 and
which were entitled to a preferential lower income tax rate under
the effective tax laws and regulations, as well as grandfathering
on the 2+3 tax holidays. The transitional tax rates are 18%, 20%,
22%, 24% and 25% for calendar years 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011
and 2012 onwards, respectively.

Pursuant to the new Enterprise Tax Law and the approval document
Rongkai Guo Shui Zheng [2009] No.150 on 30 April 2009, Scud
Electronics was recognised as an Advanced and New Technology
Enterprise (“ANTE") under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law for
a period of 3-year effective retroactively from 1 January 2008 to
31 December 2010. Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
Article 28, a recognised ANTE is entitled to a reduced income tax
rate of 15%. On 17 January 2012, Scud Electronics was approved
to continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year effective from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013 according to the approval
document Ming Ke Gao [2012] No. 1, and is subject to income
tax at 15% accordingly.

Scud Battery and Shenzhen Hongde started to enjoy the tax
exemption from 2007 and the 50% tax relief from 2009. Chaolitong
Technology and Scud Shenzhen started to enjoy the tax exemption
from 2008 and the 50% tax relief from 2010. These four companies
were subject to income tax rate at 12% in 2011.

The tax concessions previously granted to Chaolitong Technology
and Scud Battery have expired. Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax Law, Chaolitong Technology and Scud Battery are
subject to income tax rate at 25% in 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e BRI

e —Ft-A=+-ALEE

10. *ﬁIE (%)

FOERE - FEEOIREIFRBABEE - AT
BR-ZZEEF=A T NHAKZWELRE - 7
ZERFMHBERRESR A S N\F—
A—B% BEAIREERAEBNFERE
HRIERENEEMSHEAR  AREZAERT
FERBIOME =R BEESR - RZTZN

F -ZZTNF - ZT-TF - _T—FR
TE-CFRMBEBREDRAE18% + 20%
22% ~ 24%K25% ©

RENEERERNR-_TTAFMA= +E$
B9 28 HE SR AR BB ER[2009]1505% - R
BRETREFECEMRS m&%mm%%%&
MEE(SARMEED  BRPLA=F - &
PE_TT\F—A—HBRE-T-—TF+=
A=+—B1lE - BEPECEMESHIEE -+
S — R 5l 1 3 AT IR A R P 1S R R
15S%EMAEH  -R—T——F—A++8 "
RERE FIRBFFM CHBERIE20121157 258
EREASTBRNGE BT —F—A—
HEZ2-ZZ—=F+=-"A=+—H1t " G&H
B=F AR R 15%BMATSTR -

REREBNRIBEHE ST LFRARE
ERERRRB _ZTNFEZEARFHBE
B BABMBEERIRERH _ZTN\FE
FABERE YH_FT-FTFEZAHER
HEE - EORAAR B —FERAEHE
12%BRMFTEH -

BEYBEABMBEERERE L 2 HIARBED
B RETBECEMERE  BHBRER
REBELE —T— —FRMBHRE25%HMA
PSR
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10. TAXATION (continued)

Scud Shenzhen and Shenzhen Hongde were recognised as ANTE
in 2011 and the certificate numbers are GR201144200302 and
GR201144200288 respectively. Under the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law Article 28, Scud Shenzhen and Shenzhen Hongde are
subject to income tax at 15% in 2012.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, Scud Beijing,
Scud Guangzhou, Dongguan Hongde, Fujian Chaolitong, Shenzhen
Nalon and Fuzhou Thousand Island are subject to income tax rate
at 25%.

Details of the taxation in the consolidated income statement are

10. BiE (%)

RINREREFNBER-_FT——FER
ERAERFEMER REBRRED A
GR201144200302 %2GR201144200288 18 #
REMEMSEESE =+ /\UE - RYIRERR
RYBEZF — ZF B RIS %HAPTEN -

RIBFPEDEMSTOE - ALRRERE - EM
ERE - REBE  BEEBENB - RYIBAEERE
MF SRS R 25% MM PFIST °

B

FEARRREROTHIBEFBAOT

as follows:
Group
rEEH
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——1F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Current tax — PRC BN ERF1E —
Enterprise Income Tax BEMEB
Tax for the year REERIA 13,353 13,030
Overprovision NEFEE
for previous year BIEEHE (100) (3,328)
Deferred tax (Note 15) RIERIIE (F7E15) (35,703) 2,606
Taxation iiE (22,450) 12,308
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10. TAXATION (cContinued) 10. ®iE (2)
The reconciliation between (loss)/profit before taxation and taxation WIREWERA - FABRBAT(EIE), 5 F 6
in the consolidated income statement is as follows: TIBME RO ¢
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—CF —=——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AEBTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation AT (EE),a A (215,056) 67,223
Tax at tax rates applicable LI RDEE = E AN E
in the relevant jurisdictions FTENIA (53,260) 13,364
Tax effect of expenses not AR OB E R E
deductible for tax purposes 24,577 11,032
Tax effect of income not taxable ~BAZRHRUKANTRISTE
for tax purposes (5,712) (507)
Tax effect of temporary differences 5t Al R R E b =REM RS &
not previously recognised - (1,587)
Overprovision in prior years LART S 2 R 2 B (61) (3,328)
Tax effect of tax losses RERTIEEBENTG L
not recognised 14,215 2,646
Tax effect of withholding tax I A R B AK 7 RO BT A R A
at 5% on the distributable A 9K MR 5 %
profits of the Group’s BB S &
subsidiaries established in
the PRC - 4,150
Utilisation of previously B SRR R IBEE
unrecognised tax losses (65) (131)
Effect of concessionary rate FRENBARERKREER
granted to the PRC subsidiaries R 2 (2,144) (13,331)
Taxation IR (22,450) 12,308
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11. DIVIDENDS

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to preserve cash for the working
capital requirement of the business.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of HK$0.02
per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately
RMB 16,839,000 was declared and paid to the shareholders during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the
following data:

1M1.RE

EEEeRTFIAMBE_T——F+_A=+—
AItFEERTARBRE  EMRBREE
NEBNEEES TN -

REBEE-Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFER
El/ﬂi&/ﬁﬁ'%z T__EF"" ﬁ + H

I FEERRIEREEI0.028T  BEHAR
#16,839,0007T F 2R o

12. 8RR (BE) BF

RRABERFTBEARGERERN N E(EE)
S BRIRBA T BIBTE -

Group

B
2012 2011
—EB——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

(Loss)/Earnings for the purposes of EERER(EE), BRI REEDN
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings (E518) /B (KRR ewiEE AN

per share ((Loss)/profit for the RNEE(E8), %)
year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company)

(162,815) 59,492

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
2012 2011
—E-CF —EF——1F
‘000 ‘000
BF35t ATF&E
Weighted average number of FEEREAREE(EER) AT
ordinary shares for the purpose LB AR INE 19 B
of basic and diluted
(loss)/earnings per share 1,032,001 1,032,001
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 9% - BERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under furniture Leasehold
finance lease Plant and Motor and fixtures Construction Improvements
BEMAE  Buiding Machinery  Vehies  EF®RE: in progress Moulds g Total
ET 1 B? HERREE RE  GRREE  ARIR EE  WEE8 &t
RIVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIVB'000 RMB'000 RIB'000
ARETL  AREFR  AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Group 158
Cost A&
1 January 2011 “5--%-3-B 12,904 106,797 196,344 10392 85,493 5103 33,033 170912 620,978
Additions AE - - 2,120 1,580 20,190 - 8,703 17,99 90,589
Additions through acquisition AiE-EHEAR
of a subsidiary 3 - - 9473 109 589 - 3 - 10,194
Transfer from construction in progress ~ BEBERIRE - - - - - (5103) - 5103 -
Exchange adjustment ER A% - - - - 8 - - - ty
Disposals e - - (380) (307) (11,349) - 8707)  (91,746) (112,485
31 December 2011 ZF--EtZf=t-A 12,904 106,797 241,551 1,774 94,919 - 33,052 102,265 609,268
Additions AE - - 26,502 1,146 6,589 426 3,445 8,775 46,883
Disposals ij - - (22,630) (281) (1,700) - (1,843) (30,024) (56,478)
31 December 2012 “E-IETIAST-A 12904 106797 251429 12639 99308 06 364 81016 599673
Depreciation wE
1 January 2011 —E2--%-j-H 1177 - 43,604 4821 52,949 - 24,836 122,649 250,042
Charge for the year AEERR 258 5073 20,094 1,236 13854 - 4564 26,346 71425
Exchange adjustment ERRZ - - - - (6) - - - 6)
Disposals e - - (174) (29 (10,778) - (8272) (1,718 (111,234)
31 December 2011 “E--E+Zf=1-B 1,435 5073 63,524 5171 56,019 - 21,128 57217 210,227
Charge for the year AEERR 258 5073 30472 1,27 6,992 - 5,641 2561 75,354
Disposals ij - - (10,230) (267) (1,55) - (1,682) (30,024) (43,762)
31 December 2012 Z2-ZETZAZt-H 1,693 10,146 83,766 6,801 61,452 - 25,087 52,874 241,819
Net book value BEFE
31 December 2012 “F--FE{-A=t-R 121 96,651 167,663 5,838 38,356 426 9,567 28142 357,854
31 December 2011 I ! 11,469 101,724 184,033 6,003 38,900 - 11,924 44,938 399,041
Certain motor vehicles have been pledged by the Group in favour REBEB AT REER TR (EA—ER

of a bank to secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group

(see also Notes 20 and 27 below).

TTERNER(S R TXHE20K%27) -
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14. BILEE

Distribution Trade names ~ Domain  Employee Non-compete
network and patents names  contracts agreements  Goodwill  Software Total
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii)
AHE% RBESH HE  ERAH THEGE [k at Eh
(Bsk) (M) (M)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETH ARETR

Group 558
Cost o
1 January 2011 “Z——5-f-A 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 750 21284
Additions #m - - - - - - 751 751
Acquisition through business combination  EAEEAHME - - - - - - 37 37
31 December 2011 ZE—E+ZA=t-H 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 8308 213612
Additions #m - - - - - - 600 600
31 December 2012 ZE-CETCAT-E 97,664 100,958 74 58 350 6,200 8908 214212
Amortisation and impairment BHRAE
1 January 2011 —E——£-f-H 24,416 28,611 62 58 350 6,200 1,732 61,429
Charge for the year FEERX 9,767 - 12 - - - 86 10,605
Impairment loss HERR 21,066 - - - - - - 21066
31 December 2011 “E——4#fZA=1-14 55,249 28,611 7 58 350 6,200 2,558 93,100
Charge for the year TEEHZ 6,525 - - - - - 1,57 7782
Impairment loss HEER 3180 32,547 - - - - - 68437
31 December 2012 “E2-EfZR=1-H 97,664 61,158 74 58 350 6,200 3815 169,319
Net carrying amount BEFE
31 December 2012 “E2-EfZR=1-8 - 39,800 - - - - 5,093 44.893
31 December 2011 ZE—&+ZA=1-H 42,415 72,347 - - - - 5,750 120,512
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

i)

iii)

Distribution network represents the sales network of the
“Chaolitong# 738" brand, covering second tier and third tier
cities, towns and villages in the PRC. It is expected that Chaolitong’s
distribution network will offer positive growth prospect for the
Group and retrieved the present insufficiency of the Group’s
distribution channel in such region. Distribution network has been
allocated to the single cash generating unit (“CGU"), Chaolitong.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value
in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. The discount rates used of 16.74% reflect
specific risks relating to the CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development. The cash flows
beyond five years have been extrapolated using a steady 3%
per annum growth rate. The growth rate used does not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the businesses in which
the CGU operates. Management has calculated the value in use
of the CGU which is lower than the total carrying amount and
therefore has concluded that an impairment of RMB35,890,000
(2011: RMB21,066,000) was necessary. The loss is included
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

Trade names and patents comprise 7 trade names and 3
patents held by Chaolitong. The trade name of “Chaolitong
HBI3" is a popular brand which has obtained the general
recognition of consumers in rural areas and second tier and
third tier cities in the PRC. Trade names and patents have
been allocated to the single cash generating unit ( “CGU"),
Chaolitong. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on fair value less costs to sell. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period which has been
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate. These growth
rates are based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 16.74%. Another key assumption for the
fair value less costs calculations is the pre-tax royalty rate of
2.75% which is determined based on the discussions with
management, review of publicly available data on trade
names and patents and the guideline royalties. The fair
value less costs to sell calculated by using the discount rate
is lower than the carrying amount.

As a result, an impairment of trade names and patents of
RMB32,547,000 (2011: Nil) was provided in the current
year. The loss is included in “Administrative expenses” in
the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the “Chaolitong %8 /7
i#" brand is attributable to the anticipated revenue growth,
profitability, future market development and anticipated future
operating synergies from the combination. An impairment of
goodwill of RMB6,200,000 was made in the year of 2009.
No further impairment of goodwill was made in the current
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e BRI

e —Ft-A=+-ALEE

4 TR EE )
GEX

i)

iii)

7 545 48[ ChaolitongitB J7 3 | & 8 19 7
ERE - BT BRI RS
HEML - BRI B BB AR
SERHIMERATS  WEE T ASEE
BRIEZM R D HERENTE - DIHELSE
EoRHE—RERecELSEM(ERES
EEBEMN]) BB AE- B EE T
RIBFFHEEET - Z-TEREBEERE
/E/@gﬁi,ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ EIJEE%/ALTE HU
BhIRE16.74%RM T ZRSCELEBEMEN
HFRIRE Ai@ﬁﬁﬂ/{&%%ﬁﬂlﬁ%%‘
BRIEHRETEE 2 EM - AFENRSE
mb@ﬁﬁB%Z?%ﬂfﬁi‘ﬁr?&E 15 R

BRREELENMMTRZITENRIF
t’ﬁ"ﬁf cERENENREELSBUN
FRHEEBRNRIEmEE Bt BREA
R#35,890,000t( —F——F : AR
21,066,0007T ) ° 3% €518 JhaTt A &R & Wi
FWITHAXZ] -

GhIE L E R B IR D BT A N 7E MR

HI3THER) o fChaohtongtﬂLJuuﬁiﬁﬂ’]ﬁ
BRREXENN RS - &5 EPI_ =
AR B E O EERT o fie6H
BEFBESEEE—REBRSELEM(R
@EfE%LLD BE 73 o AU El #EE )
IRIE A FER SR AETE - et E A

REEEEIERERTHNVEESEYN
MmN EREEEREREE - %E
BERDIBEBEBBITFEERBAEE - 8
THBEATENTFHRAERER - Be
mIERIER 2 BhI8 E16.74% ° st ERAF
ERKARNS —AEEBRLABRELEE
fiLTTFﬁnT M mEEERE QAT

SEIE R FFETEIESI B E MBI AT TS

Tz 75% o B EFHEH A TERLE
AR BREE -
ALt RAFE 5 AR ®32,547,000T

—E T ) Z on i EE R FE L
B BRI ARARERNTTR
Fisc] e

Hﬁ(ﬁﬁfChaolltongtﬁ@Juuﬁ??iZ?ﬁ
@EEEE’\A%FEZ?EHHWAF 3
MeeHh  ARMBHERBHRRLE

BHMHENB - RZZETNEHARE
6,200,0007E2Fﬁ§3f’ﬁﬁﬁ1ﬁ o AAFE
WS EEL#E— P RE -
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

15.

116

Notes: (Continued)

14. B EE#)

iv)  The Group carries annual impairment tests for goodwill and
trade names and patents with indefinite useful lives, or more
frequently if there are indications that these intangible assets
might be impaired. The acquired distribution network, non-
compete agreements, employee contracts, domain names
and software are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
respective estimated useful lives.

v)  The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included
in “Administration expenses” in the consolidated income

statement.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED

15.

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BeE : (&)

iv) AKEHEEARROPELRERE
METFRERENR  KHBETLEERT
RATBERIE - B ISR T T UL B, o
PR 2 DIHMA - THF 4 BEA
) BARRBHAERERESEBE 2
FHE R FRETTH -

V) AFERRNBHEAXCREAKRER
[TTRFAX AT °

EREANELHREERAE

RERNELEE IR K R AR TR
BE/(AE)BH REBHIT:

Impairment
loss on
trade and  Accelerated Provision Undistributed
other  accounting for Loss  profits of
receivables depreciation warranty  on refund  subsidiaries Total
EWEZHE
REAER it ERRE Em WEXEN
RERESE BiHE EHe B APRER h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR ARBTT ARETRT ARETT AR®T:
Group r£E
1 January 2011 RZZ——%-A-H 304 - - - (2,170) (1,866)
(Charge)/credit to the consolidated ~ RERAKERF (H1KB) /5 A
income statement 731 39 774 - (4,150) (2,606)
Reversal of temporary ROERIEER
difference - - - - 3,000 3,000
31 December 2011 RZE——5+-A=+-H 1,035 39 774 - (3,320 (1,472)
Credit/(charge) to the consolidated ~ FARAMZERFH A/ (1K)
income statement 429 (39) (156) 35,469 - 35,703
31 December 2012 RZE-—5+-A=+-H 1,464 - 618 35,469 (3,320 34,231
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15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (continued)

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB96,119,000 (2011: RMB29,846,000), that can be carried
forward for five years from the years in which the loss arose for
offsetting against future taxable profits of those subsidiaries.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB96,119,000 (2011: RMB29,846,000) unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams for offsetting the unused
tax losses before expiry.

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise in China
to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to Enterprise Income
Tax at source on a withholding basis. The standard withholding tax
rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
is 20%. According to Article 27 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law and Article 91 of the Detailed Implementation Rules of the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate
has been reduced to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the
Mainland of China and Hong Kong Special Administration Region
for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR DTA, Hong Kong tax residents
which hold 25% or more of a PRC enterprise are entitled to a
reduced dividend withholding tax rate of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to its
foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise Income
Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits generated by
a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008 shall be subjected
to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with the relevant articles of
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its Detailed Implementation
Rules as described above. Accordingly, dividends receivable from
certain subsidiaries in respect of profits earned since 1 January
2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-FA=+—HILFE

15. ERANELEB HEERAE #)

REENTRMBARB RS BOREKRE
ZHANERHE6,119,000(ZF——F : AR
29,846,0007T) * A HE - MATEEMEE
AEZEN B AR 2 A RERBEF -

ER R M U R RN SR 2R s 1 2ROIR A K #0 72 B 2R Al
REHAMBIBEREE WA EGRHARE
96,119,0007(=F——%F: ARK¥29,846,000
To)BIAREE AT EE B ERIRER B A E -

BIEFECEMSHESKERE=T K
INEIRE D EREABERIINEKZEE SR
B2 RBALURR MBS NBMBEMEH -
BEPBECEMEBAE N BA BN
KH20% - MIBEFBECEMESREE -+t
ERABICERMESFEEBERME L+
FAUEATEINRERE10% © REBECRBANES
FrRI1T B B S T 15 i S S SR AP L fa
RREIZEE) - LIS ERBERZE25%50A EfE
MEBMHER - RESHES% BN ETE
HH o

ARBEVBBLEERREEARR —FFTN\F =
AZ+—ABARMRCEAREXMSHE TE
BHEeBM) (FH[2008115) - —FF)\F
ZHNERECRRNRERDEMNE - &
—TEN\FHURDERINEREEDN AR
BEEMREHR : M_TTN\FHARFEIEG
BRECENFENEOR AR EAFHEDZE
FrSBUAA B IRD R R F A E AR B
RS- Bt ETHBARSE —ZTNF
— A — BSRS89 I i 8 U A B 2R AR5 %
OSEEAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —ZF——

15.

16.

118

F+-—A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB176,855,000
(2011: RMB274,378,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not been all
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the Group’s share of temporary differences attributable to retained
profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

15.

16.

CHRANEEHEEERER®

W_E——F+_A=+—H KEBHEHER
RARFPEMBRARRBETEBOEREE
AHMARME176,855000( —F——4F : A
R#274,378,0007T) ° H3FA 7N & & AT 4% il ¢ )
TR EE VR BEREENT R KRER
D AEETEREERRAFBEMER
RIRBBFIEIL 2 A B ZERRE BB HR
RIELIEER B A ERE -

EWEBEAL

EWBREATORBEREERR  2EREAR
ERFERE

I

The information disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong BREEERAIEFEI6IBKAERENER
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: UM

Maximum balance Balance at Balance at

during the year 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

R=B-=F+=p HZF-——%+2A

EREB R =+ B =t BREH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T AREFT

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note) BEREBRRMERD () 2,028 2,028 1,703
Note: FieE -

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Stock”) is a company with
Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors
and shareholders.

RRRERRAERAT(RERBRE ) A—
RS & A ERBREEEALRES LRE
B AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

INVENTORIES 17. 78
Group
KEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETF T
Raw materials R R 156,352 153,353
Work in progress F B n 95,319 62,459
Finished goods EERK 101,973 75,014
Goods in transit EREm 117,326 56,947
Less: Provision for write down B MURE AT IR R E  BE
to net realisable value (10,945) -
460,025 347,773

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

18. EREZRENRERRE

Group

KEE
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥®TT ARETT

Trade receivables e E 5 5k18 574,070 498,435
Notes receivables FEU =& 93,065 20,987
667,135 519,422

Less: Allowance for bad and B RIBEREE
doubtful debts (34,476) (8,257)
632,659 511,165

As at 31 December 2012, notes receivables of approximately
RMB20,001,000 (2011: Nil) have been pledged by the Group in
favour of a bank to secure bank loans and notes payables (see also
Notes 20 and 27 below).

R-ZE——F+-A=+—8  A£BEBY
AR #20,001,0007t( =T ——4F : T)HEI
ZREBH TR T EARTERMENEESD
BR(S R TXMEE20%27) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —F— 4+ - A=+—HILF)E

18. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. EWWEZFIEREWEE #)

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of the BEEZER  EHRBEEN RS ARG RRK
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of allowance, HEWE SR IR R EREBENRERITIT
is as follows:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—EB——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

0 to 60 days 0£60X 350,561 308,434
61 to 180 days 612180k 208,215 180,962
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 50,352 18,746
1 to 2 years —ZEZMF 21,547 2,860
2 to 3 years ME=F 1,984 163
632,659 511,165
The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from BTHEERNTEREHAN T60E0AH -

60 to 90 days.

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARZRBENSHNOT
year were as follows:

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

1 January —H—H 8,257 4,237
Impairment losses recognised BRERREERE 26,715 4,020
Impairment losses reversed B #E R AERE (496) -
31 December +ZA=+—H 34,476 8,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

18. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 1. EREZREREREE #)

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are past 360 BB N0 SRR (B B FE WU 5 R8I I IR HE Y
due but not impaired is as follows: BRERDATINT -
Group
EE
2012 2011
2= —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT ARBTT

Less than 6 months past due WA B N E A 163,313 107,748
Over 6 months past due BERSNE A LA E 37,571 14,730

200,884 122,478
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number #60 BR B 30 R OB (E ) FEUGRIB R R KB 8958 <7
of independent customers that have a good track record with the BEPMEEREES RIFHGTHE - BIBRUAL
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company B ARBIEEREARBEEABREEEXN
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary - MERBEITER2E8WE - MAFERE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant LE AR IR ERE -

change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 H{E - F— %+ - A =+—HILFE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19. AARIE - RERHMWERRIEA

RECEIVABLES
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—B-—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Advance to suppliers I L P #A K 119,144 90,903
VAT recoverable AR AR AT 27,217 4,288
Deposits paid for acquisition of ~ BEEBEWE - BiE N RE
property, plant and equipment KBtz e 3,289 11,409
Refundable deposits ALRER 2,411 6,538
Others Efth 4,729 3,011
156,790 116,149
Less: Allowance for bad and B RIBREE
doubtful debts (3,050) (1,349)
153,740 114,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. B RE - ReERHEMEWNKIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (#&)
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARERBENZHNOT

year were as follows:

Group

KEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —ZE——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBET T

1 January —H—H 1,349 2,084
Impairment losses recognised EHERRERE 2,150 37
Impairment losses reversed EERORERE (449) (772)
31 December +ZA=+—H 3,050 1,349
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets included LAEBEWARTIA - L EREAEEEEER
in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no SRIBRY B 765 & T B3 BN MR B 4050 8% -

recent history of default.

20. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 20. EEHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have been REREERE  AEEEHATEERR
pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure general FIRIT - 1EAMBE—RBITEEER

banking facilities granted by the banks to the Group:

Group

KEE
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E=——fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBETT

Motor vehicles RE 795 879
Bank deposits H|ITIFR 143,684 123,639
Notes receivables FEUW =% 20,001 -

164,480 124,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z —ZF——

20.

21.

22.

124

F+-A=+—HIFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 2.8% per
annum for the year (2011: 3.1% per annum), and will be released
upon the settlement of the notes payable.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at
0.4% per annum (2011: 0.5% per annum).

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

20.

21.

BEERM =)

FRAEBEMBRTHFERIR2E(ZE——F: &
FINE)WEFEFFEFL - WHRENENT
R T AR o

RITERRRE

HITHEBREBASEEAEEBENRE RRE
HAA=ZMAUTHEERITER - CHR
TEFIEEEFENROAB(—E——F : 5F
0.5E)&t 8 -

ARBTARE DI ERLBEMBES
A EPEIMNEE RGO RAE  NERE
EEEMRTE  AEEAKHERELETINGES
BMEBZIRITIRE -

DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 22. BENEBEANLFE
The amount due to a related party was unsecured, interest-free ENEEEATHHEEEER 22 RER
and repayable on demand. EREFEE -
Detail of the balance is as follows: AR ¢
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Scud Stock RERRAD - 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

23. ENEZRERESRE

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—CfF —=——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Trade payables FENTE 55008 164,562 188,525
Notes payables FERT R 300,816 195,003
465,378 383,528

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REEFA  RRESHBERKENE A
RENZEAREONIT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
0 to 60 days 0E60K 297,059 214,139
61 to 180 days 612180k 139,163 145,847
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 16,641 15,725
1 to 2 years —ZWF 9,345 6,771
2 to 3 years ME=4F 2,044 916
Over 3 years =FUE 1,126 130
465,378 383,528

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for

trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

B E S HORE B QA E SR E RIS ER AR
RIS HOR - B HWEHERATF 7 F308

£90H -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS ON REFUND 24. EmEIWIE %
Group
KEE
2012 2011
—z-—f -
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMETT
Loss on refund E e iE sk 151,743 -

In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Group took initiatives to
communicate with its major distributors and made adjustments to
its market sales strategies. The Group implemented a refund policy
whereby the Group refunded its distributors for the unmarketable
battery products under “SCUD" and “Chaolitong” brands which
they had previously purchased from the Group during the period
from 1 January 2010 to 30 June 2012, to offset trade receivables.
This refund policy allows the distributors to tackle the difficulties
in overstocking and capital turnover and to purchase new products
with liquidised capital. The refund plan is expected to be completed
in the first half of 2013. During the year, the Group made a provision
for impairment of the refund made in the fourth quarter of 2012, as
well as a provision for impairment loss due to the refund expected to
occur in the first half of 2013. The directors estimate the provision
for refund based on estimated quantity, agreed price and net
realisable value of the refunded products. As a result, the Group
recorded an one-off impairment in the amount of approximately
RMB151,743,000 (2011: Nil) arising from the refund of own-brand
batteries already made during the year and to be made in 2013,
which included approximately RMB97,071,000 provision for refund
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

AEEB T —_FEMNFTREFHREARD
HEEITER  ABRMSHERR - A5H
i 2 on B B F‘T”ﬁﬁﬁ@”ﬁl?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\:
E—EF—A—HAE=-ZT—-FXA=+H
ZEmAEBRER TD/%%E’]HR%H}EJDD
W K[ #8738 | R B EE fm - AR 85 FE UK
B HHIE o JhE G EIECR 5 SHE 15 AR
AEFREERECAE FNBE  ©9HEH
BESBBAFER - EmOWETEFERT
“E-ZHFLHFREK - FRN AKEEY
RZZ— ZFE W EE K E @B LR E
B N MEREFR T —=F k¥
FANZEmEIUPAT I MERIE L E L ET
BERE -  EFRIBEOKEHERB AR
- HEBR  REKEmRNAERFE -

LA ETE m B W BB - Eitt - AEE

REAHDRIWERBEFR-F—=FKEK
ZBAmEEBEL —RIEHREREOA

R#151,743,00000( =T —— & : ) > 81F
DIRRAERE ISR RO ARE97,071,000
Eméuu@uﬁﬁ’yﬁ
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PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 25. EmRIEEES
Group
REEH
2012 2011
—T——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
1 January —H—H 3,623 3,898
Release [ (549) (275)
31 December +—A=+—H 3,074 3,623

The provision for warranty claims represents management's best
estimate of the Group’s liability under a half-year warranty program
granted on the own-brand name battery, based on prior experience
and industry averages for defective products.

OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

EnRERELEEFEEERERBEBELRR
ENRETHHE  pAEERHBNBEA RS
EHFFREFTINEBEELANKERE

26. HA BN A - HRFIEREG

AND ACCRUED CHARGES =4
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBEFT
Deposits i 18,543 29,549
Payroll and welfare payables JEAF S BN % A ) 21,490 20,229
Accrued expenses JEFTRIX 4,012 4,042
Payables for acquisition of BEVWE  BEMIR
property, plant and equipment NG 1,477 10,395
Payables for construction ERERTIZE A
in progress - 1,633
Other tax payables HAth FET IR 880 5,818
Withholding tax liability TENFIAAE 4,250 4,250
Others Hi 29,369 33,272
80,021 109,188
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27. BANK LOANS 27. RITERK

Group

AEME
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Secured bank loans EHEBIRITER 5,549 645
Unsecured bank loans EEIRITER 284,264 147,169
289,813 147,814

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: RITEFERFHWOT ¢

Group

AEME
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHRIZENR 289,390 127,275
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEA 130 117
After 2 year but within 5 years  FREEERER 293 20,422
Over 5 years HBiBRF - _
Non-current portion JERENEL D 423 20,539
289,813 147,814
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BANK LOANS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, bank loans of approximately RMB5,549,000
(2011: RMB645,000) were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB795,000 (2011:
RMB879,000) and notes receivables of approximately RMB5,001,000
(2011: Nil) (see also Note 20 above). There were no other borrowings
other than bank loans as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s director and controlling
shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, has guaranteed certain bank loans
made to the subsidiaries of the Group of up to an amount of
RMB175,326,000 (2011: RMB50,645,000).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are also equal
to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e M BRI

T——F+-A=+—HILFE

27.8B1TER#®)

RZE——F+_A=+—8 ' ABEHARE
5,549,0007t( =& ——% : AR%¥645,0007T)
ERITERAAE@EREELN A RE795,0007T
(_;——¢ © ARHES79,0007T)H /A E RAIA
E¥5,001,000T( =& ——%F : T)WEKREE
ERIEIR (IR L 720) - RZT—=
FE+-_A=+—-HBR=-E—Ft+-A=+—
B BRIBTEFIMIEEMEE -

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H ' AREINES
FEBEREFSLERARNEEMNBR T}E{#\
& e EAR175,326, ooo;ﬂ ——
F: AR¥50,645,0007T) 8% TERTT f’Etb'
EiR o

AEEWNIRTEFOFGERFE(FRERS
BME)I

Group
KEE
2012 2011
—E—CF —E=——%F
Average effective interest rate BERZ
on fixed-rate borrowings ?i’ﬂﬁf‘f’%ﬂz‘? 5.54% 6.61%
SHARE CAPITAL 28. A<
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
in Thousands RMB’000
SR0.10% T
EBERRE x|

TR AR®T T

Authorised: JRIE ¢

At 31 December 2011 and 2012 R-E—F R _E——F+_-_A=+—H 5,000,000 502,350
Issued and fully paid: BETRER

At 31 December 2011 and 2012 W-Z——F K -_T——F+_-HA=+—H 1,032,001 103,014
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29.

130

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 23 November 2011, Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Electronics”) a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a share sale and purchase agreement (“Share Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Cao Xinggang and Shi Wei (the “Vendors”)
pursuant to which Scud Electronics agreed to pay a total consideration
of RMB40,000,000 of which RMB21,000,000 payable to the
Vendors as consideration for the 70% equity interest in Shenzhen
Nalon whilst the remaining RMB19,000,000 payable to Shenzhen
Nalon and should be recorded in the accounts of Shenzhen Nalon
as capital reserve after the approval from competent authorities of
the PRC on the share sale and purchase have been obtained. Upon
completion of the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, Shenzhen
Nalon became an indirect subsidiary of the Company with Scud
Electronics having a 70% equity interest in Shenzhen Nalon and
Cao Xinggang remained as the beneficial owner of 30% equity
interest in Shenzhen Nalon.

In 2011, RMB21,000,000 was paid to the Vendors as consideration
for the 70% equity interest in Shenzhen Nalon and RMB19,000,000
was injected into Shenzhen Nalon and recorded as capital reserve
of Shenzhen Nalon.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement,
it was agreed that Scud Electronics shall be entitled to appoint
over 70% of the board of directors of Shenzhen Nalon and shall
have the right to appoint the president and vice-president of
Shenzhen Nalon. The total consideration under the Share Sale and
Purchase Agreement was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties based on the net asset value of Shenzhen
Nalon as at 31 July 2011 of approximately RMB30,182,000 as
stated in the management accounts of Shenzhen Nalon as at 31
July 2011. Further information about this transaction is set out in
the Company‘s announcement dated 23 November 2011.

According to the supplementary agreement, the ownership of
RMB19,000,000 capital reserve of Shenzhen Nalon belongs to
Scud Electronics only.

2

9. WIBHIE A A

MNZTE——F+—A=Z+=0 " AAFNHNEE
WEARRERGERZ)ETFTERAA(TRER
BFDREHEMEAE(ER DI CRNHER
(RO ERERZE]D - Bt - REREFE
EX B A EARHAL0,000,0000T 0 EFHA
R#21,000,0007T# X4 F&EH 1ERFYIBAEE
70% & #E 2 KB - MerEEAKRM19,000,0007T
B FIRYIBBEE - WRESE R EBTS
PIBERR D B E 2 HAE BT AORYIBAEE Z BR B 1E
BERGEE  RNERBRNEEHGZ® Rk
BRARARZHEZERBAR MARERET
R A RYIBABET0% AR #E - T & JAI =%
BABE30% MIEERME A °

MZZE——F - AR®21,000,0007t 2 17 T
BEHERFYIBAEIONREZRE - AR
19,000,0007T )& & TR YIIBA 88 Kzt A BRI
BARE 2 B AR o

RIERMNDE B HE 2GR - STHTHERER
BT A RTRIIBAEETO%IA L HEEESKE -
MEREZTRIBPEZEERLAFESR - I
MEERECBREDEITNT2E XYM L
RNZZE——FtA=+—RHZEREREKM
FUBAEER T — F A=+ —HZEEF
B4 AR30,182,0007018 A FREMEEIZEN -
ERLRZNEMERSERAAGBHA=ZT
—E+—A-+=B2R% -

BRI e % - ARE19,000,0007T T AR
BAgE B ANRE - TEEARERETEEA -
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Reason for acquisition

The purpose of the Group’s investment in Shenzhen Nalon is to
increase the scale and productivity of the upstream bare battery
cells manufacturing business of the Group and Shenzhen Nalon
is one of the leaders in mid-to high-end lithium ion bare battery
cells in terms of research and development capabilities, leveraging
on its professional and experienced research and development
team, advanced production and inspection facilities, and strict
quality assurance system. Shenzhen Nalon will enable the Group
to enhance its research and development capabilities in the
Group's core technologies, and further stabilise the upstream
supply, maintain cost control, improve profit margin and enhance
core competitiveness. As Shenzhen Nalon is primarily engaged in
research and development, manufacturing and sale of mid-to high-
end lithium ion bare battery cells, the investment in Shenzhen Nalon
will allow the Group to apply such expertise on its rechargeable
battery products with varying qualities in its future bare battery
cells supply, contributing to the enhancement of “SCUDFTERR"”
brand’s unique competitive strengths in the rechargeable batteries
industry in China.

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

29. WEBFIEE 2 B ()

WEETEH
REBERYAE 2 REBNER TIBMASE
Bz EHETEERBZRBEREE  RYIHA
EEABEXLERETZMEEN  HETHE
ZHEERBAREAREZOMERERR -
T in E = in iR 8 7 B0 7 M K EE
MATFI o R I BABE — 7 T BE 5 199 B 2 52 18 58
OB B —FIREL
TEHRE ~ IR - REERENEMMBZ
DERFE - RYIBAEEEREPRERHERE
BL2HE  EEREE - HRIIBAE 2K
B R R B A Ak 2 B e AR T RO M
RESAEE8FHN o REEBMER L L#
[SCUDTRER ImEEBANFEEMTEH 2

BHEES -
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 29. WHBHI B AT (&)

31 December

2011
—2——F
+=ZA=+—H
Fair Value
AFE
RMB’000
AREFTT
The assets and liabilities recognised E s FIEERNE E
as a result of the acquisition are Rasmr
as follows:
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 10,194
Intangible assets mARE 37
Trade and notes receivables FEWE 55k 18 R FE R & 51,843
Inventories FE 47,296
Trade and other payables e 53R IA ] Ho A e < 5RIE (61,294)
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 2,898
Non-controlling interest, based on FEIEHIMERE R - TR
their proportionate interest in the WEREBREER
recognised amounts of the asset BEMERLLOEE
and liabilities of the acquiree (9,592)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB HERFEE 41,382
Gain on bargain purchase arising U B FTEE A MBS (B AR
from acquisition B Em U (1,382)
Total consideration wRE 40,000
Total consideration satisfied by cash: BRENRSEN -
Consideration paid to Vendor ZNTFERZRE 21,000
Consideration paid credited to capital ERRERARYIBAEE
reserve of Shenzhen Nalon HERQTE 19,000
40,000
Net cash outflow arising from AWEEEEENES
acquisition: TR
Bank balances and cash acquired EWBRITESRLIES 2,898
Cash consideration paid ERNBEENRE (21,000)

(18,102)
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The excess of the fair value of attributable net assets acquired over
the cost of acquisition of RMB1,382,000 (i.e. negative goodwill)
was recognised as other revenue in the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2011. The
Directors considered the negative goodwill resulted from a bargain
purchase.

The fair value of trade and other receivables is approximately
RMB51,843,000 and includes trade receivables with a fair value of
approximately RMB43,273,000. The gross contractual amount for
trade receivables due is approximately RMB43,273,000, of which
none of them is expected to be uncollectible.

Scud Electronics nominated directors and appointed them in place
of the existing directors of Shenzhen Nalon on 31 December 2011,
the date from which Scud Electronics is able to govern Shenzhen
Nalon’s financial and operating policies. The date of acquisition is
31 December 2011.

Shenzhen Nalon contributed no revenue to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011. If the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2011, contributed revenue and net profit to the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would have been approximately
RMB 106,000,000 and approximately RMB3,921,000 respectively.

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

2

9. WEBHI B A B #)

FT Ui i & 2 V(A FE (R X B B Uk B P £ R
BRA 2 &% ARM1,382,000 (BB FE)
EREBE-_T——F+-_A=+—HILFEZ
REKERERAEMKE - EFRAEATE
TR EE W -

EWESREREMERRENFENRA
R #51,843,00070  WEEAFEHARE
43,273,000 T I FEUE 5508 - FEUE 5 FRIE
A HTEHOARA3,273,0000T © H A
BT AT EIIRE -

RIE——F+_A=+—H REBRETIR
AREZFEFRRAYIBERAES B Z
HABEVSRYIBARE I B MAS & R R HE - B R
RIE——F+ZA=+—H-

REE-E——F+_A=+—HILFE F
JNAREHEBRAREER - ERBEFEN =
T——F—A—HA%4% HE-T——F+=
R=+—BIEFEHREEMERMOKA LG
B 5 R4 AR % 106,000,0007T RAHIAR
#3,921,0007T °
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30. CHANGE

134

IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES

a)

During the year, the Group acquired the remaining 30%
interest in Joint Smart Holdings Limited which in turn becomes
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The consideration
of RMB2,000 (equivalent to HK$3,000) was paid in cash.
The remaining non-controlling interests and other payables
balance of RMB50,285,000 at the date of the acquisition was
derecognised. The difference of RMB50,283,000 between
the amount of non-controlling interests and other payables
derecognised and the consideration paid was credited to
accumulated profits in equity.

During the year, the Group disposed of 10% of its interest
in Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan Hongde which in
turn become 60% owned subsidiaries of the Group. The
consideration of approximately RMB9,597,000 was received in
cash. An amount of approximately RMB10,615,000, being the
proportionate share of the carrying amounts of the net assets
of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan Hongde at the date of
partial disposal, has been transferred to the non-controlling
interests. The difference of approximately RMB1,018,000
between the amount of additional non-controlling interests
recognised and the consideration received was debited to
accumulated profits in equity.

30. RIfB AR 2 R ESE

a)

b)

FR - AEEREBRESEEERARGBT
30%EE - FER AR ALEEEEN B
AR RE AR2,0007T (% 73,000
BIENBE I - RIKE A BT IE
EHE R R M EN RIEREARK
50,285,0007C B 4% IFHERR o R IFHER 2 3E
PEH e R M B RERE A REZ
=5 ARKES0,283,0007C B R IEZ
B 2 AP R -

FN - AEEBHEERFIBERRTS
E210% e - MRAREEKAREE
BHO%ERNMBAR » WEWEIRE
KRB AR#9,597,0007T » REfH HE
HER - ROl BEHARY10,615,0007T
mRYIBERREREFEERTEDE
Boa I R RS o FTI IS R 25 B
BAREZ A ZEELH ARY,018,000
TLEFAESTRRETEF
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 1. BRAEALRS
a) The name of and the relationship with related parties are as a) BHEAREZWIMEEBERNT :

follows:

Name Relationship

=L BE

Fang Jin Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

ik NN FE EFRIE IR

Guo Quan Zeng Director

BRI &%

Scud Electronics Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly

REMRE T held by the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
REREBR)EFBERAT  FeAEARAZEENANAEEELE

LN

Scud Battery Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by

RERE B the Company with Mr. Fang Jin being common director
REBRBAERAF Aot AhHRAEENARHELZERNBEAF

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang Jin and

FERRAR (7 Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors who have shareholding

interest in this company as to 67% and 3%, respectively.
BEREBRBROBRAT - ARAERBRIELERRERAESTHAF -
W BB Z A RI67 % K3% A -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

136

b)

Transactions with related companies during the year not

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised

1. EREALTRZ 2)

b)

W ERM B RREMB D WENFAERE
RAR ST

as follows:
Group
ALK
2012 2011
—E-—=fF —E——%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Rental expenses paid to ERRERRS
Scud Stock (Note i) ik aEbaqirEa) 12,192 12,192

The above transaction was made at prices and terms as agreed

between the parties in the normal course of business.

Notes:

i)

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated 11
December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered into
a lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June 2004,
pursuant to which Scud Electronics had agreed to lease
from Scud Stock certain factory premises in Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, the PRC, for the Group’s production use
for a term of three years commencing 1 July 2004 and
ending on 30 June 2007 (the “Lease Agreement”). The
Lease Agreement was later extended to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
set its initial annual caps for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2008 to be RMB2,700,000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into
a new lease agreement for leasing another premises in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for
the Group's administrative use for a term of 3 years (the
“New Lease Agreement”).

PR STIN—REBBETRBEBES
1% 5E BV (EHE  AGRFETT

R

)] ARARERBHA -_TZXFE+ -
A+—BMBRERHEE  RER
EFER_ZEZTNF A -_+HER
3§W3foauTgLTH Stz - BULRER

BEFERERRERKGHERH
BEAEMNNETIMYEELAES
HERE BR-ZTOFLA—HE

:ggtiAﬂf+E¢ﬁ%f¢
([HEH=ZE]) - HERRERTERE
—ZE-UFEXA=ZFH-

HEMZBETITNEFTREMNESEKX
FTHRABUAZETENFERER
S ARREREEE_ZTTNF+
A=t HI=ZAFESFENISL
HF ERAARE2,700,0007T °

R-ZZLF+—HA+AH RER
BFRIHAESE R - RRERRND
HERPEBEEARMNO MY EE
gﬁéﬁﬁ% #(FEERED &
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

(Continued)

The annual caps have been revised following the signing
of the New Lease Agreement. The new annual caps
for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Electronics to
Scud Stock under all the leases for the years ended 31
December 2007, 2008 and 2009 have been determined
to be RMB3,000,000, RMB4,100,000 and RMB4,100,000,
respectively.

On 8 January 2010, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
entered into a lease renewal agreement (the “Renewal
Agreement”) and agreed to terminate the New Lease
Agreement with effect from 1 January 2010. The terms
of the lease under the Renewal Agreement is the same as
that set out in the New Lease Agreement and is effective
commencing from 1 January 2010 and its tenure ending
on 31 December 2012. Further details of the Renewal
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 8 January 2010.

The new annual caps for the aggregate rental payable
by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all the leases
for each of the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011
and 2012 have been determined to be RMB4,100,000
each.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement, the New
Lease Agreement and the Renewal Agreement were
determined after arms’ length negotiations between
Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Electronics and Scud Stock
agreed to terminate the Main Lease Agreement and the
Renewal Agreement with effect from 1 January 2011
and entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
Agreement”) for the period commencing from 1 January
2011 and ending on 31 December 2013. The annual
rental was RMB5,461,866 and payable by cash on a
monthly basis.

On 1 January 2011, Scud Battery and Scud Stock entered
into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease Agreement”)
for the period commencing from 1 January 2011 and
ending on 31 December 2013. The annual rental was
RMB6,729,777 and payable by cash on a monthly
basis.

The directors of the Company have confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction stated in Note i) above.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e M BRI

e —F-A=+-ALEE

1. BREALTR S (@)
by (&)
WS - (48)
N (&)
izyensas oxere

NERZZEZNF+-_A=+—AH1
FE - REMEHAE  REBETFE
Hm%%kﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁtiiwa

2 BlIE A ARE3,000,000T - AR
B#1%4,100,00077: & A R #4,100,000
7‘E o

RZZE-ZF-HA/\B  RERE
W%%k@ﬂiﬁﬂﬁ %([EA®H
%) YREE_F-TF—A—H

t%iﬁﬂ%%%ofﬂ% ZIH N HY

HEGRRENEE W AEEAR

B2 —ZF - HERnER

HEHR _Z——F+_HA=+—H

B - AREAERENFBHRAR

AIBHA=ZZFT—FTF—A/N\BNA
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—:$+fﬂ T—HIEFEESF
RIBFBHEE - REBRETFENRE
BREHAESHFESF LRESTA
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HE W - FEE S REE R
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EMERTEESMET -

RZZE—F—F—H RERE

EREBRKOIBEA —T——F— A
—HEKRItEHERRERGZEL
AIVHERR(E—mHEERE] -

AP —T——F A —ARE_ZF
—=F+-_A=t+—HIt - FEHS
B AR5 461,866 © BEF AR
Ca- 4N

%:?——i—ﬂ—avﬂ%%%/
ERERBHEIZBERHRE = H
HEWZE] HEEZ ?ffﬁf
A—BRz—_FT—=F+="/A=+—
ALk FEHE A ARYE6,729,777
JC BEFANBE S -

ARREEHER  ARRDETLEX

M sZiFT &l £ TR RSB 14AZ B B HS
BREX S REEIFNRERE -
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31.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

¢)  Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2012, Mr. Fang Jin, has guaranteed certain
bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the Group of up to
an amount of RMB175,326,000 (2011: RMB50,645,000).

d) Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 8, is as follows:

1. BEEALR B (@)

0 HEMBALMEMRZS

RIE——F+-_A=+—8 ' A&k4E

HRAREENE R RRES

BR=EA

R#175,326,0007T( —Z——F : AR
50,645,0007T) FE TERITIRASEHEIR ©

d IREEATWHE(SROMESAKE
MESXNARBESME)WT

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——fF ZE——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Salaries, bonus, allowance  #H& - &4 - 285
and other benefits R EH Mg F 955 958
Retirement benefits scheme  RIKENEHEIH R
contributions 33 24
988 982
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. &L
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Contracted but not EEEmE -
accounted for, in respect BB KT
of acquisition of property, HERAR
plant and equipment 10,422 5,810

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

RIREREERE - REBRET AR
EEROFIAT AR EI E Y 3t RAEF 5

in respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows: REARASENT -
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Within one year —FR 11,424 10,087
In the second and MERF(BEEMFERIEEAN)
fifth years inclusive 31,551 19,793
More than 5 years sy Ak 7,520 -
50,495 29,880

None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group
does not have an option to purchase the leased land and
buildings at the expiry of the lease periods.

ERANETEESAES - REERE
WHERS T EBERE T REBFTHE

B -
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33. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a loss of approximately RMB355,000 (2011:
profit of approximately RMB54,707,000), which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company.

34. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated:

Place of
incorporation/

BAATESZEEAERG(EER)
iz Al
ARREEFEAREAFEGREBERER
BHAREESS5,000L(ZF——F B fHA
R#54,707,0007T) * JIERARRA BT HIREF
BRIE o

o) NG

RIBEMEBRERRRMBARFENT -
BIERTTHA - IHANRM AR AEERK

34,

Issued and

paid-up share/ Group's effective

establishment registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital rEEERHEEES activities
AR SR ERITRES 2012 2011
IR Feg—$:u k2 BRRBRE ZE--F —E——F FEER
Great Speed Enterprises British Virgin US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands 50,000% T AR
BABERR QR RERIHS
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate
Company Limited B 17T management services
REREE(FH) R DR EIRIRES
BRAF
Keen Power Holdings Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
Limited 55 1,000/ 7T BB
HEEEE AR AT
Joint Smart Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 70%*  Investment holding
Limited e 10,000/ 7T BB
BEE B AR AR

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

34. B A El ()

Issued and
paid-up share/

Group's effective

establishment  registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital ErEBEERHEE S activities
MR ERITREM 2012 2011
AT LB A it B BRRBRAE —E--F —T——F FEEK
Scud Electronics PRC Us$3,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. AR 3,000,000 7T of rechargeable battery
RERREF ORI packs, chargers and
BRAF related accessories for
(Note i) mobile phones, digital
(BRI cameras and other
electrical appliances
BUE RIHERARGE
B BUSAEM R E M
BfEMNZRRAE
BB
Scud (Fujian) Electronics PRC Us$27,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
Co., Ltd. A 27,000,000 7T of rechargeable battery
RERER)EF packs, chargers and
BRAT] related accessories for
(Note ii) mobile phones,
(B=EN) notebook computers,
digital cameras and other
electrical appliances
BE M IHE e
WBBEE - ELA
B - SR R HA
BfEMNZXRTEE
AR - TER LA BB
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited * EBRRACEERAGMEEREER
#  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited #  BRHEEEERARMHERAER
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and
paid-up share/

34. i & 2 =]

Group'’s effective

establishment  registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital TEEBERHEEER activities
R AL AL & ERITREH 2012 2011
AEER KR BRBRA =E-=F —T——F FEBEEK
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale
REBREDARR H 30,000,000 ¢ of rechargeable
(Note iii) battery packs, chargers
(B =Eii) and related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook computers,
digital cameras and
other electrical appliances
Bl MIHE AR
BE)EE - B ABH
%Zﬁ*ﬁ&%&ﬁﬁﬂ%%?u%
E’J //\ /@i‘ﬁ
%*“&ﬁ%ﬁ#
Shenzhen Hongde PRC RMB50,000,000 60%Y 70%Y Research and development,
Battery Co., Ltd. A E AR manufacturing and
J‘Mmﬁ%{ﬁfﬁ/ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ 50,000,0007C sale of lithium bare
(Note iv) battery cells
(P EEiv) WELZHE  EEREE
Dongguan Hongde PRC RMB30,000,000 60%™ 70%™  Research and development,
Battery Co., Ltd. A E AR manufacturing and
%#_‘_J%ﬁfﬁ/iﬁﬁﬁﬁ 30,000,0007C sale of lithium bare
(Note x) battery cells
(P EEx) WELZHE  EEREE
Scud (Guangzhou) PRC RMB6,215,000 70%Y 70%Y Research and development,
Digital Technology A E AR manufacturing and sales
Co., Ltd. 6,215,0007C of bluetooth earphones
J& M 7 T [BR B A8 Rl and other digital
BRAF] telecommunication
(Note v) appliances
(P EEV) ““Hﬁ S AE
BM 2 FEREE
#  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited BRI RE AR ARIHERAER

Y Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

®  Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co.,

Ltd.
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. iMB A8 (4
Place of Issued and
incorporation/  paid-up share/ Group'’s effective
establishment  registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital rEBEREEER activities
MRS R ERTRES 2012 2011
AR ERE AR it B BRRA =E--F —T——F FEBEEK
Scud (Beijing) Electronics  PRC RMB5,000,000 40%Y 40%Y  Sale of rechargeable battery
Co., Ltd. H AR packs, chargers and related
RERULR)E 5,000,0007T accessories for mobile
BRAT] phones and other
(Note vi) electrical appliances
(Pt 5Evi) HERANBEEEREAM
BfEMNZRRAE
BEAE - RBEHRK
AR
Fujian Chaolitong Battery PRC RMB5,000,000 100%" 100%Y  Not yet commenced
Co., Ltd. A AR business
BEBNBEMARAR 5,000,0007T CENGEE-
(Note vii)
(Ht L vii)
Great Power Enterprises  Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%* In the process of
Limited B 1,000/ 7T deregistration
ShERERR AR BT T
Y Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Vo OEBRER (BE) ESTARAAMEER
Ltd. B
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * ERRACEBRRAGBERARER
Limited
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34.
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. B A 8 (4
Place of Issued and
incorporation/  paid-up share/ Group's effective
establishment  registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital rEBERHEE S activities
MR R ERTRES 2012 2011
ARER EE BRRA —®-—F —T & IEEH
Chaolitong Technology PRC RMB37,000,000 100%4 70%*  Manufacturing and sale of
Company Limited H AR rechargeable battery
YT SR 37,000,0007C packs, chargers and
BRAT] related accessories for
(Note viii) mobile phones, digital
(B EEviii) cameras and other
electrical appliances
SERHERANEE
BiE - B & H A
BFfEMN_ARSE
B
Patriots Group (China) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced
Company Limted B 10,0007 7T business
EEEERE(PER) RN
BRAT
Patriots (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% * 100%*  Not yet commenced
Power Sources B 10,000/ 7T business
Company Limted DR NGEL
EEE(FE)EIR
BRAT
Shenzhen Nalon PRC RMB30,000,000 70%Y 70%Y  Research and development,
Battery Company H AR manufacturing and sale
Limited (Note ix) 30,000,0007¢ of lithium bare
ARIITTEARE B battery cells
BRAAE (M5 ix) BELZE  EERIEE

4 Interest indirectly held through Joint Smart Holdings Limited
*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited

Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

FRMEEERERARNBES AR
BRERAGRERARIFEZTEELS

?i@ RER(BR)ETERARNEETESA
En
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of Issued and

incorporation/  paid-up share/

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-FA=+—HILFE

34. B A El ()

Group's effective

establishment  registered ownership interest Principal
Name of company and operation  capital ErEBEERHEE S activities
MR ERTRES 2012 2011
IR Feq—$:uE BRRBRAE =B--F —_T——F IEE®
Fuzhou Thousand Island  PRC RMB500,000 100%* —  Not yet commenced
Electronics Co., Ltd. AR AR#500,0007T business
(Note xi) SENGY -
BNTFEEFERAA
(FH5E xi)

+

Interest indirectly held through Fujian Chaolitong Battery Co.,
Ltd.

Notes:

i)

iii)

iv)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

X)

xi)

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 26 October 2006.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
21 January 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 6 years commencing
23 July 2010.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
3 August 2010.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
21 October 2010.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 13 years
commencing 4 March 2005.

Limited liability company for a term of 10 years commencing
4 July 2007.

Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011.

Limited liability company for a term of 20 years commencing
7 September 2012.

FREEBNRESLARAREESERE

¢
<
g

GE

i)

V)

vi)

vii)

viii)

X)

Xxi)

SNEBERE  —ETRETAZTRA
RETRBEL+F -

SNEBELRE  —ANEFETA=+T—R
RETRBEL+F -

INERELE  —ETRFT A HR
ARt E -

BRETRAR  —EERF—A=-+—H
it =3 iy s

BRETRAR  —E—ZTFLA=-+=H
HERT A BN o
BREETAR > —Z—ZTF N\ A=H#:t
p=3-1: i Rr=

BRETRAR  —E—ZF+A=-+—H
friti =3 iy s

INEBELE  —TTRF= ANBER
A+ =4F o

BREMTRAR  —EE+F+ANARE
BHTF -
BREEEA AR —E——FWNWA+—H
A8 o

BREETAR  —T—_—FhA+H#E:
p=3-1: i R=
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

35. RERIE T 2B TH

PAFR 5 B A8 RS

BHMF B TANKREE

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: UM
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E-CF — T4
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BRREWRE BEHRRERIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Financial assets MKEE
Due from a related party FEWE BB A 5008 2,028 1,703
Trade and notes receivables FEUR B 55008 B FE IR R 632,659 511,165
Financial assets included in TR A - e REM
prepayments, deposits and FEWGRIEFT BT
other receivables KIS & E 34,159 13,358
Pledged bank deposits BRI 143,684 123,639
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIRE 278,749 375,326
1,091,279 1,025,191
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——& ZE——4F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised costs amortised costs
RBERAANER  REHEKAAR
e A& BB BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Financial liabilities BEaE
Due to a related party FENBRAEA L 5RIE - 6
Trade and notes payables JERTE 5508 REN & 465,378 383,528
Financial liabilities included in HAhERTFRIE - TEUGRIE R
other payables, receipts in JEETE R BIER
advance and accrued charges MBaE 54,049 79,639
Bank loans IRITER 289,813 147,814
809,240 610,987
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
which include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The directors manage and monitor these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

i) Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged bank
deposits and bank balances which are all short-term in
nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-bearing
financial liabilities are mainly bank loans with fixed
interest rates; therefore, the Group is not exposed to
significant fair value interest rate risk due to the short
maturity of the items. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy and will consider enter
into interest rate hedging should the need arise.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

36. WK EREERMBTAZAYE

AEBEREB A SEMBRRBED
BER(BREINERR - FIXER & ERE
Rig) - FEERRIRBERR - BRI
BEZERBHBENFBERINTX - EF
ERREBZEAR  UEREELIAF
B ABMEE HHEE ©

) FIEEREE
MEHBEET R 2R HMHENDIK
HRTERRIRITES - WIREEF
B - B BABEEEAKRET
MR EBITER - Bt A%EE
EETHEMEEERE - I ~E
AZBEBANRFEFNERR - AEE
T5 g N 43 A AR] ) SR T SR R SR R S 2 R
B R ERET SRR R o
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36. MBEREERMBITA
Z R E@)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

148

significant exposure to price risk.

(Continued)

i) Interest rate risk management (Continued) ) FIREREE(E)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis FRBRE D
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined A TEEURE ST HREFZEEHE
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred RREHEARBREMET - WE
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied FERARRRZB A REMBIA
to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments ZHERR - REEBEEAT(ER
in existence at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is % [3 B 19 PR B 5 R 458 AR S N SlORt
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key 1% DIEEREE A E LB
management personnel and represents management’s &) 5l o
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other W I 180058 A1 % T BT A EAth
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year HHERITE  AEEEE-T—ZF
ended 31 December 2012 and the accumulated profits +-A=+—HLFENEBEER=
as of 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by ET-——F+-_A=+—HBHERFE
approximately RMB933,048 (2011: the Group's profit for G o0, R A 49 A R #5933,0487T
the year and accumulated profits decrease/increase by (ZZT——%F : XEERM KR
approximately RMB2,804,498). This is mainly attributable w8 & A R 12,804,498
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate o) e W EERBEARNEEE SR
bank balances and pledged bank deposits. HEHRREEARRITEROFERR
The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed 7 52 [ ) M) 2R BgURR S B oK A AR B I f
significantly from prior year. BEREE -

ii)  Foreign currency risk management i) SMERREE
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements SMERBRIEINEE RSB G EARE
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect the B BEERERSRENER
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Although BEAEEEEE TUET  HER
the Group has certain bank balances and bank loans BT RBEMMRITERRRITER
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese Yen AN - ZEINERHEREAEEE
and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion of these BELOINEAER o o - REE LA
foreign currency balances to the Group’s total assets is ARBETERZHRS Al - =
insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries out majority ERAREBE W EAZ E(AERAI
of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in FEX @ o
the opinion of the directors, the Group is not exposed
to any significant foreign currency risk.

iii)  Price risk management i) BRERELE
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have EERAAEEWEMEAENERR

ZoN
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

iv) Credit risk management

v)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at end
of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the risk, management of the Group closely
monitors overdue debts. The recoverable amount of
each individual debt is reviewed at each of the reporting
period and adequate allowance for doubtful debts has
been made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that credit risk
associated with the Group’s trade and notes receivables,
and other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain level of concentration of credit risk as approximately
8.1% (2011: 11.1%) and approximately 26.8% (2011:
32.8%) of the total trade and notes receivables, arising
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC.

Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the Group’s short, medium and long
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILFE

36. K EMEERIMEITAE
ZR¥E )

iv)

v)

FEREERE
EERRESFTIEITANEEMS
BAKEMBERNRER - NEBEN
EFERRTIEEAEBMNRITER
FEWE B A N EERE - AREAM
FEURIRAR © WS FHRMBFE
RAREBITRERSECHRAMBEE
ENEE  FERRNESRERRHT
BARKAAZEFEENREE - &
TRENERR AEENERER
DERTEAEE - FBLEEN
AR EHFER SRS HEEN - X2
FLANAT YR B Y BRER 1 R S R BRZE
BoBtmE  ARENEERR
ERSEE R EINE FRIE R ERFEE
AR EMEKRIBRBHNEERRD
RIER D °

RREBBERE - NEBERNEKRE
PHBRERBEERERTFE—TR
EREERBEEF - HH148.1% (=
T——F 11.1%) 2 #)26.8% (=F
——%F :32.8%) ' NRBEAKEE
ABEFRAKREF °

HRHF I EREEFRNRIT - &
BEIRTTAERI EERBRTAK

HIEES  ARBERRRTES
AR ©

B R EHE

REBASENES  FHEEHE
eRFERPUEEENELR  EFg
BV -E/RENRBDETRRERE
HE - YERBUERBREEARKE
- AREE B TE R A R R IR
TREEMFREERE  RSSERE
BEREMERRSRE - LRI
BESEAFENIEARLAEE RS
R -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

v)  Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
31 December 2012 and 2011, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

36. WKEREERMBETR
ZBFE @)

v) REMEBREE(E)
WZB-——FR-TB——F+-A=
T—H ARENMBEEREDAT
KARBBRFRBANBISERAT

2012
—E-—F

Total Total

On Less than 6 months to undiscounted carrying

demand 6 months 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount

REHR

RER ~MERR AERE-F —Z5F RENAE BEAR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBTRE ARMTRT AR®TR ARBTR ARMTT AR%TR

Trade and notes payables [ERE S HERENRE 137,416 327,962 - - 465,378 465,378
Financial liabilities included in other SEAEMEMFTE -

payables, receipts in advance TUMRIE RS

and accrued charges ERnMHAGE 28,889 25,130 30 - 54,049 54,049

Bank loans FITER - 171,957 124,685 494 297,136 289,813

166,305 525,049 124,715 494 816,563 809,240

2011
B2

Total Total

On Less than 6 months to undiscounted carrying

demand 6 months 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount

AR

RER AMEAR REARE-F —E1Ff Ren#E i

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT  ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR%TT ARETR

Due to a related party ERBREALIE 6 - - - 6 6

Trade and notes payables ENESTERENTE 164,188 217,787 1,440 13 383,528 383,528
Financial liabilities included in other SEAE MR -

payables, receipts in advance TR IE R R

and accrued charges ERNBKARE 41,019 36,620 2,000 - 79,639 79,639

Bank loans RITER 5,027 104,899 19,859 26,014 155,799 147,814

210,240 359,306 23,299 26,127 618,972 610,987
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate
their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of these
balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the
relationship.

37. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011.

RE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+_-A=+—HILFE

36. K EMEERMKE IR

AN SR

FHIR—FNYBEERBENAESD
FHRRAEQIFERE

MR A REA T AEBRNTARER SR
AmENBENEESEMET - NI E
BEEXEEBNATE -

37. EXREE

AEENTIEEAEE BERREAEESE
REMBEN  BRRENEARLE - UXFE
B R ABEREBGRADR

AEBETIEHEARER  UHEERENEY
MEBMEENRRMEEHERERBETHE -
BB EAREE  AEET]ARIRMK
RARRE  MREBELEERLBETHR - A5
BT ZEMINREHENERETAHRE - HE
—E——F+-A=t+—BRZZE—F+=
A=+—HBLFE TEHEEZ BXRIBF
EHEEE -
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37.

152

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt includes interest-
bearing bank borrowings. Capital includes equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company and the non-controlling interests.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as

37. EXEE (#)

rEBFEAECEABLREERANFEER
NBERNFEE NEBOBRIHFTEE
BELERS0%UT - FABRENSIRTE
o BRBIERRRIEZITE ARIGIRARIE
THMEER o NREHREERE  EEAEL
Ry

follows:
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERTTER 289,813 147,814
Equity attributable to equity RARERFFBA
holders of the Company FEAE AR AR 1,102,895 1,233,034
Non-controlling interests SRR 60,538 114,646
Total capital FEEE N 1,163,433 1,347,680
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE 24.9% 11.0%




38. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is set out below:

REMBMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE - ZF——4#+-A=+—HIFFE

38. A AR MEER

RARRBEPEERT Z M B ER &40

T

2012 2011

—g-=f¢ —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREEF T

Investments in subsidiaries RSB ARIRE 250,901 250,901

Amounts due from subsidiaries [ PNGIE e 622,951 639,729

Other assets HEMEE 3 3

Total assets BEMBE 873,855 890,633

Total liabilities BERAE (2,951) (2,830)

Net assets BEFE 870,904 887,803
Capital and reserves BEAR R HE

Share capital [N 103,014 103,014

Reserves i 767,890 784,789

Total equity e 4ATE 870,904 887,803
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 &%= —F——4+-A=+—HILF)E

39. RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 30. AIHERT R BEHRE NS
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Group has not adopted earlier or applied the following
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012: AR FTAERI R RRE

AEEY BIRFRALEATIRBEE T —
THET A=t - HIEFERKRERZERT

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after

RUT BB EERS

ZEEREHHER

IAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
BIFR & 5198 (IBFTA) Hibh2EWATER 2 —E-—F+HA—H

IAS 19 (2011)
B EAE 19 (ZT——F)

IAS 27 (2011)
B g A E27R(ZF——F)

IAS 28 (2011)
Bl &R FE 285 (T ——F)

IAS 32 Amendment

B e At R FE 3258 (BRTAC)

IFRS 1 Amendment
B PR B s R 5 22 A 28 1 5% (18 5T A))

IFRS 7 Amendment

BIPR B A s 2R RSB 75 (18T A)

Amendments to IFRSs

BB B S R (IERT )

IFRS 9
BRI R B 75 4 o5 R R B 9 5%

IFRS 10
BRI H5 ¥ 5 2R RIS 1055

IFRS 11
IR 75 s BRI B 1155
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Employee Benefits

RERBH

Separate Financial Statements

BTG HEK

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

REERBRABREZRE

Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

25 - EHENBEERMBARE

Government Loans
BT ER

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

RE-EHEWBEERMBAE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
—EENFE_Z—FRBRCFEIE

Financial Instruments

TRMIA

Consolidated Financial Statements

ral @K

Joint Arrangements
BETH

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—ZE—=%F—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2014

—F-MmF—-HA—H

1 January 2013
—E-=F—-H—H

1 January 2013

—ET—=F—A—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2015
—ZE-h¥—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—ZT—=%—H—H



39.

40.

41.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —

e BRI

E——F+-A=1+—HItFE
e RBBHRE DS )

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BHRE#RER
ZEEREHBEN

IFRS 12
BUPR B 755 s o5 AR R 281 2567 Hth B PSR KR

Fair Value Measurement

ATEE

IFRS 13
PR B 75 s ZE R B 13557

IFRIC 20

a Surface Mine

BRI EHRERELZES
—%%%%%205»1

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact of adopting the above new standards and interpretation
and amendments to standards in the period of initial application.
So far, it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the ultimate controlling
party to be Mr. Fang Jin.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 27 March
2013.

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of

FR KRS E AR B IR

1 January 2013
—=%—A—H

1 January 2013
—=F—f—H

1 January 2013

—=%—H—H

AREEE T R FF b FE 9050 18 R 5 R A A _E 5
AIEARRERETENNAETZE - BATR
E}%ZWEZ%%%T&@aTEﬁ'JTKTa&#ﬁ%I
AR E MM REREATE -

=

40. FAEZEHIA
R-_E——F+_-_A=+—H BEERERK
TW%H}\iﬁ'ﬂi%ﬁEi

@

M HEGZEMERE

ARREFCEENR_E—=F=-A=-1+tHSE
BREEBEEERGEMERE -
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EFEMBERE

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from T34 &

MBENBFAARKEB ZRAMB®RE

the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under  3ZZEISRR JHiRIE BB ISR EEARE

International Financial Reporting Standards:

Year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=1t—-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—f —T——% —T-TF —TTNEF ZTT)N\F
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTRT ARBTI ARETT ARETT AREFTT
RESULTS 4
Turnover e 1,821,620 1,653,011 1,527,445 1,264,869 1,252,693
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BREAT(B1B),EF (215,056) 67,223 68,200 54914 142,357
Taxation | 22,450 (12,308)  (16,038) (8,996) (72)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AFE(BE),/HF (192,606) 54,915 52,162 45918 142,285
Attributable to: THIALE :
Equity holders of the Company RREERFAA (162,815) 59,492 54,350 46,837 131,954
Non-controlling interests FEPEH MR (29,791) (4,577) (2,188) (919) 10,331
(192,606) 54,915 52,162 45,918 142,285
As at 31st December,
R+=B=+-8
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f ZE——% ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTN\F
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 2,113,100 1,998,181 1,771,730 1,498,639 1,537,865
Total liabilities BEE (949,667) (650,501) (485,217) (260,507) (317,183)
1,163,433 1,347,680 1,286,513 1,238,132 1,220,682
Equity attributable to: THATEEHER -
Equity holders of the Company RRFERFFAA 1,102,895 1,233,034 1,179,646 1,156,194 1,137,844
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 60,538 114,646 106,867 81,938 82,838
1,163,433 1,347,680 1,286,513 1,238,132 1,220,682
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Hong Kong

www.scudgroup.com
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) has reviewed with the senior management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing and
financial reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012 before they presented the same to the Board for approval.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Shareholders whose name appear on the Company’s register of members on Monday, 6 May 2013, will
be eligible for attending and voting at the Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”). The Company’s
register of members will be closed on Monday, 6 May 2013, during which no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, located at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 3 May 2013.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held in Hong Kong on Monday, 6 May 2013. Notice of the AGM
will be issued and disseminated to Shareholders in due course.
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On behalf of the Board of
SCUD Group Limited
Fang Jin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Messrs. Fang Jin, Guo Quan Zeng,
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